
Region 2 Lower Red-Sulphur-Cypress Regional Flood Planning Group  
 Public Meeting 

February 1, 2024  
 2:00 pm 

at  
Small Business Development Center 

105 North Riddle, 
Mount Pleasant, TX 75455 

and 
Via teleconference/webinar 

Use the following information to register for the meeting:  
https://us06web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZEuceGprT0tE9ZT_1551F9dOKmb78

LYqgDs  
After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the meeting. 

If you experience issues while registering or do not have access to a computer, please contact Paul Prange no less 
than two (2) workdays prior to the meeting at 903.255.3519 or pprange@atcog.org. 

Agenda: 
1. Call to Order
2. Welcome
3. Confirmation of attendees / determination of quorum
4. Public Comments – limit 3 minutes per person
5. *Consider approval of minutes for the meeting held on December 7, 2023
6. *Consider approval of applications submitted by interested parties, to serve as a voting member

on the Region 2 Flood Planning Group, representing the categories of Agricultural Interests and
Water Utilities Interests.

7. Review and Discuss the application by the RFPG Sponsor for submittal to the TWDB on behalf of
the RFPG.

8. *Discuss and Consider nominations for election of Region 2 RFPG Officers to include Chair, Vice
Chair, Secretary and Executive Committee per Article XII, Section 3 of the Bylaws

a. Nomination for Chair by members
b. Discussion and consideration of election of Chair
c. Nominations for Vice Chair by members
d. Discussion and consideration of election of Vice Chair
e. Nominations for Secretary by members
f. Discussion and consideration of election of Secretary
g. Nomination for additional Executive Committee members (2 voting members-at-large)
h. Discussion and consideration of election of Executive Committee members

Presentations 
9. Texas Water Development Board Update
10. Region 1 Canadian-Upper Red Regional Flood Planning Group Update

https://us06web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZEuceGprT0tE9ZT_1551F9dOKmb78LYqgDs
https://us06web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZEuceGprT0tE9ZT_1551F9dOKmb78LYqgDs
mailto:pprange@atcog.org


Technical Consultant Update 
11. Final Amended Regional Flood Plan was Accepted by TWDB – Technical consultants are available 

for questions.  
Other Business 
12. Update from Planning Group Sponsor 
13. Consider date and agenda items for next meeting  
14. Adjourn 

*Denotes Action Items 

If you wish to provide written comments prior to or after the meeting, please email your comments to 
pprange@atcog.org and include “Region 2 RFPG Meeting” in the subject line of the email – OR – you 
may mail your comments to Region 2 RFPG, c/o ATCOG – Paul Prange, 4808 Elizabeth St, Texarkana, TX  
75503.  
 
If you wish to provide oral public comments at the meeting, please submit a request via email to 
pprange@atcog.org , include “Region 2 RFPG Meeting Public Comment Request” at least 2 hours prior 
to the meeting, and follow the registration instructions at top of page 1 of the Agenda.   
 
Additional information may be obtained from: www.texasfloodregion2.org, or by contacting Paul Prange 
at pprange@atcog.org, 903-832-8636, -or- Region 2 RFPG, c/o ATCOG, 4808 Elizabeth St, Texarkana, TX  
75503  
 

All meeting agendas and notices will be posted on our website at www.texasfloodregion2.org. If you 
wish to be notified electronically of RFPG activities, please submit a request to pprange@atcog.org, 
include “Request for notification of Region 2 RFPG activities”. This request will be honored via email 
only unless reasonable accommodations are needed.  

mailto:pprange@atcog.org
mailto:pprange@atcog.org
http://www.texasfloodregion2.org/
mailto:pprange@atcog.org
http://www.texasfloodregion2.org/
mailto:pprange@atcog.org


Meeting Minutes  
Region 2 Lower Red-Sulphur-Cypress Flood Planning Group Public Meeting 

December 7, 2023 
2:00 p.m. 

at 
Small Business Development Center, 105 North Riddle, Mount Pleasant, TX 75455, and Via Zoom 

Webinar/Teleconference 
 
Roll Call: 

Voting Member Interest Category Present (x) /Absent ( ) / Alternate 
Present (*) 

 Agricultural interests  
Andy Endsley Counties X 
W. Greg Carter Electric generating utilities X 
Laura-Ashley Overdyke Environmental interests X 
   
Casey Johnson Industries  
Dustin Henslee  Municipalities  
Troy Hudson Public  
R. Reeves Hayter River authorities X 
Kelly Mitchell Small business  
David Weidman Water districts X 
 Water utilities  

 
 

Non-voting Member Agency Present(x)/Absent( )/ 
Alternate Present (*) 

James (Clay) Shipes Texas Parks and Wildlife Department X 
Andrea Sanders  Texas Division of Emergency Management  
Darrell Dean Texas Department of Agriculture X 
Tony Resendez Texas State Soil and Water Conservation 

Board 
X 

Trey Bahm General Land Office  

Anita Machiavello  Texas Water Development Board (TWDB) X 
Michelle Havelka Texas Commission on Environmental 

Quality 
 

Lisa M. Mairs USACE, Galveston District X 
Travis Wilsey USACE, Tulsa District  
Randy Whiteman RFPG 1 Liaison  
Ellen Mott Red River Valley Association  
Jason Dupree TxDOT – Atlanta District X 
Dan Perry TxDOT – Paris District  

 
 
 
 



 
Quorum: 
Quorum: Yes 
Number of voting members or alternates representing voting members present: 5 
Number required for quorum per current voting membership of 10: 5 
 
 
Other Meeting Attendees: ** 
Paul Prange – ATCOG 
Mary Beth Rudel – ATCOG 
Kathy McCollum - ATCOG 
Joshua McClure – Halff Associates Team 
Parker Moore – Halff Associates Team 
David Rivera – Halff Associates Team 
Cynthia Nolasco – TWDB 
Caroline Jones – F&N 
Lance Liggett - TDEM 
 
 
**Meeting attendee names were gathered from those who entered information for joining the Zoom 
meeting. 
 
All meeting materials are available for the public at: 
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/flood/planning/regions/schedule.asp.  

http://www.twdb.texas.gov/flood/planning/regions/schedule.asp


AGENDA ITEM NO. 1: Call to Order 
Reeves Hayter called the meeting to order at 2:14 p.m.   
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 2: Welcome  
Reeves Hayter welcomed members and attendees to the Region 2 Lower Red-Sulphur-Cypress Flood 
Planning Group meeting and specifically recognized Cynthia Nolasco and Anita Machiavello from the 
TWDB. 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 3: Confirmation of attendees / determination of a quorum  
Reeves Hayter asked ATCOG staff member, Paul Prange, to conduct a roll call of attendees. 
Each present voting and non-voting member of the Region 2 Lower Red-Sulphur-Cypress RFPG 
introduced themselves, establishing that a quorum had been met.  Five voting members were present 
along with six non-voting members.  
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 4: Public comments – limit 3 minutes per person  
Reeves Hayter opened the floor for public comments.  No public comments were received. 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 5: *Consider approval of minutes for the meetings held Thursday, June 15, 2023 
Reeves Hayter opened the floor for discussion and approval of the minutes from the previous meeting.  
A request to correct a typographical error was made by Greg Carter.  A motion was made by Laura -
Ashley Overdyke and was seconded by Greg Carter to approve the minutes as corrected.  The motion 
carried unanimously.   
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 6: *Consider approval of applications submitted by interested parties, to serve as a 
voting member of the Region 2 Flood Planning Group, representing the categories of Agricultural 
Interests and Water Utilities Interests 
Reeves Hayter announced that Preston Ingram and Susan Whitfield resigned from the flood planning 
group due to taking on additional duties at work.  Mr. Hayter stated that the applications have been 
posted for well over a month and no one has applied so far.  Mr. Hayter asked the group to encourage 
anyone with agricultural or water utilities backgrounds to submit their applications for these open 
positions If they are interested in serving on the Region 2 Flood Planning Group Board of Directors 
during round 2.  Andy Endsley stated that he knew of a possible candidate for the water utilities 
category.  Mr. Hayter asked Mr. Endsley to provide him with the person’s contact information and Mr. 
Endsley agreed to do so. 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 7: *Discuss and consider authorizing the RFPG Sponsor to apply for grant funds and 
enter into a contract with TWDB on behalf of the RFPG 
Reeves Hayter turned the floor over to Paul Prange and Mary Beth Rudel to discuss the application 
process.  Mr. Prange stated that the TWDB guidelines require the board to authorize the sponsor to 
submit an application for funding.  The proposed funding amount for Region 2 is $2,078,400.00.  This 
application is due to TWDB by February 22, 2024.  Mrs. Rudel concurred with this process.  Mr. Hayter 
stated that he appreciates ATCOG for taking on the task of Region 2 Flood Planning Group Sponsor for 
the next five years and asked for a motion to authorize ATCOG to submit an application to the TWDB.  



Greg Carter Made a motion and Laura-Ashley Overdyke seconded the motion.  The motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 8: Texas Water Development Board Update 
Reeves Hayter turned the floor over to Anita Machiavello, who stated that on November 30th the TWDB 
sent out their regional flood planning update in a newsletter for the month of November.  The 
newsletter contains a working timeline with important dates relating to the transition from Round 1 to 
Round 2 of flood planning.  Links to the application for funding are also included in the newsletter, along 
with an updated scope of work and funding allocations for Round 2.  Ms. Machiavello also announced 
that the regional state flood plan administrative rules were amended in October by the TWDB and 
became effective on November 1, 2023.  Currently TWDB is reviewing all the RFI responses that were 
received from each region and will provide acceptance emails in January 2024.  Second RFI emails will be 
sent out next week for responses, which will be due one week later.  Ms. Machiavello introduced a new 
TWDB staff member who will be working with Regions 1 and 2.  Cynthia Nolasco provided a brief 
introduction.  Ms. Machiavello announced that TWDB also has a new RFP Manager, Mike Kelly.  Lastly, 
Ms. Machiavello announced that the TWDB plans to conduct a webinar in January, focusing on the RFA 
process, and she asked that the sponsors refrain from submitting their applications until after the 
webinar. 
  
AGENDA ITEM NO. 9: Region 1 Canadian-Upper Red Regional Flood Planning Group Updates 
Reeves Hayter announced that no action will be taken on this agenda item since the Region 1 liaison was 
not in attendance at this meeting. 
 
TECHNICAL CONSULTANT UPDATE 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 10:  Technical Presentation by Halff Associates, Inc. 

1. Planning Process Update 
a. Regional Flood Plan accepted by TWDB on July 25, 2023 
b. Amended Regional Flood Plan submitted on July 14, 2023 

1. Comments received from TWDB November 7, 2023 
2. Response due November 20, 2023 
3. Revisions and all work must be complete by December 29, 

2023 
c. TWDB Preparing State Flood Plan for submittal by September 1, 2024 

2. Additional work performed by consultant 
a. Preparing more detailed documentation of FMS/Ps for use by sponsors 

        
Reeves Hayter turned the floor over to Joshua McClure who presented a brief technical update to the 
group focusing on the timeline of deliverables mentioned earlier by Anita Machiavello.  Mr. McClure 
announced that Halff Associates received comments from the TWDB in early November and they were 
due on November 20, 2023.  The comments related to GIS files and various tables. They were addressed 
and submitted to the TWDB by the due date.  The comments did not pertain to the text of the report, so 



no changes were required.  Mr. McClure stated that there is no work left to do from a technical 
consultant standpoint unless the TWDB provides additional comments.  Mr. Hayter asked Mr. McClure 
to elaborate on the preparation of more detailed documentation of FMS/Ps for use by the sponsor.  Mr. 
McClure stated that he has prepared a few memos which include additional information for cities with 
FMEs to help them explore future options.  Mr. Hayter asked Mr. McClure to send a list of the memos to 
the flood planning group. 
 
Reeves Hayter asked Anita Maciavello and Joshua McClure about the six counties located in Region 2 
that have no floodplain maps at all.  Mr. Hayter mentioned the data contained in the Floodplain Quilt on 
our website and some BLE data that has not currently been added to floodplain maps, and asked when 
this data might become available.  Mr. McClure stated that the BLE data has been completed and is in 
the possession of the TWDB to be posted.  FEMA plans to take the BLE data for Region 2 and create 
floodplain maps for areas that do not currently have any floodplain information over the next few years.  
Mr. McClure encouraged the flood planning group and the individual counties to contact FEMA and ask 
them to accelerate the process in the counties that have no floodplain maps.  Andy Endsley briefly 
discussed this need in Delta and Franklin Counties. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 11: Update from Planning Group Sponsor 
Reeves Hayter turned the floor over to Paul Prange who announced the timeline of events to begin 
Round 2 of the flood planning process.  The application is due to TWDB on or February 22, 2024; the 
funding amount allocated for Region 2 is $2,078,400.00; contracts will be executed in May of 2024; and 
procurement of a technical consultant follows contract execution.  Mary Beth Rudel provided the group 
with a draft flyer to consider adding to our public outreach efforts during Round 2.  Mr. Hayter asked 
what the intended audience would be for the flyer and Mrs. Rudel replied; social media, RFPG2 website, 
ATCOG website, other COG websites, websites of various water planning entities and water supply 
providers throughout the region.  Brief discussion took place among the group. 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 12:  Consider date and agenda items for next meeting 
Reeves Hayter opened the floor for discussion.  The Region 2 RFPG board members agreed to conduct 
the next Region 2 Flood Planning Group Board of Directors Meeting on Thursday, February 1, 2024, at 
2:00 p.m. at location to be determined and via webinar/teleconference.   Potential agenda items may 
include approval of the completed Region 2 application to TWDB and the election of officers. 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 13:  Adjourn      
Reeves Hayter made a motion to adjourn, and it was seconded by seconded by David Weidman.  The 
motion carried and the meeting was adjourned at 2:49 p.m.  
Approved by the Region 2 Lower Red-Sulphur-Cypress RFPG at a meeting held on 2/01/2024. 
 
 
______________________________ 
Reeves Hayter, CHAIR 



 

Page 1 

Texas Water Development Board 

Regional Flood Planning Grant  

Application Checklist 

November 2023 



Attachment 3 

Page 2 

All applications must be complete when submitted to the TWDB. A list of required items 
with check boxes has been provided in the following pages to assist you in completing the 
application. Please check the boxes after you have included the respective items in 
the application and return the completed checklist with the application. 

I. GENERAL INFORMATION

 1. Legal name of applicant(s). 
 2. Regional Flood Planning Group. 
 3. Authority of law under which the applicant was created. 
 4. Applicant's official representative, Name, Title, Mailing address, Phone number, 

Fax number, if available, E-mail Address, and Vendor ID Number. 
 5. DUNS Number. If you do not have a DUNS number, visit: 

https://iupdate.dnb.com/iUpdate/viewiUpdateHome.htm 
 6. Total proposed planning cost estimate (see Table 1 for total cost by region).  
 7. Total grant funds requested from the Texas Water Development Board. 

II. ADMINISTRATIVE DOCUMENTATION

   8. Written designation from the RFPG naming the Planning Group Sponsor that is    
authorized to apply for these grant funds on behalf of the RFPG (as required in 
31 TAC §361.70(b)). 

 9.  A copy of or website link to the RFPG’s adopted by-laws (as required in 31 TAC 
§361.70(a)).

 10. Written documentation that the RFPG considered additional, region-      
                  specific, public notice requirements at a meeting in accordance with 31 TAC 

361.12(3) prior to taking action regarding its application for funding (as 
required in 31TAC §361.70(c)). 

III. PLANNING INFORMATION

 11. A detailed scope of work for proposed planning. Include the Scope of Work for 
     the Second Cycle of Regional Flood Planning document prepared by TWDB 

       located at  http://www.twdb.texas.gov/flood/planning/doc/2023DraftSOW.pdf 

 12. A task budget for detailed scope of work by task.  

 13. Is the RFPG suggesting modifications to the TWDB’s proposed task budget? 

Yes  No 

    14. If yes to No. 13 above, provide written justification for the changes. 

 15. An expense budget for scope of work by expense category. Example is 
included. 

 

https://iupdate.dnb.com/iUpdate/viewiUpdateHome.htm
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/flood/planning/doc/2023DraftSOW.pdf


  Attachment 3 
 

Page 3 
 

  16. A time schedule for completing detailed Scope of Work by task (see Scope of  
                    Work document referenced above). 
 

 17. Specific deliverables for each task in Scope of Work (see Scope of Work  
      document referenced above). 

 
    18. Method of monitoring study progress. 

 
The following information that will also be needed to finalize and approve the Regional  
Flood Planning Grant Contract: 
 

  19. Requested Revisions to the Draft Contract Language: The Sponsors should  
       review the Draft Contract Language posted on the TWDB website and provide 
      any suggested revisions or questions with their RFA submission. 

 
 20. Vendor Set-Up Form: Even if the Sponsor is an existing Contractor with the   

       TWDB, it is suggested that they complete a new Vendor Set-Up Form to ensure   
       that we have the correct banking information on file for this project. RFP  
       Manager is responsible for obtaining the most up to date template from TWDB’s   
       Finance department.  

 
 21. DocuSign Instructions: The names of individual that will sign the Contract in  

       DocuSign, along with the individual’s email address. 
 
 22. Correspondence Information: (used to populate the Correspondence section of  

       the Regional Flood Planning Grant Contract). 
  

For CONTRACTOR:  
  
Contract Issues:  
Name 
Company  
Address  
City, State ZIP 
Email:  
  
Payment Request Submission:  
Name 
Company  
Address  
City, State ZIP 
  
Physical Address:  
Building Name  
Street Address  
City, State ZIP    

 



  Attachment 3 
 

Page 4 
 

 
IV. WRITTEN ASSURANCES 
 
Written assurance of the following items:   
 

  Proposed planning does not duplicate existing projects. 
 
Please check the boxes after you have included the respective items in the 
application and return the completed checklist with the application. 



 

P. O. Box 5307 * 4808 Elizabeth Street * Texarkana, TX  75505-5307 * Phone 903/832-8636 
 

 

TEXAS WATER DEVLEOPMENT BOARD 
REGIONAL FLOOD PLANNING GRANT APPLICATION 

RESPONSE TO RFA 580-23-RFA-0015 
 
 

I. GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

1. Legal Name of Applicant:  
  Ark-Tex Council of Governments (ATCOG) 
 

2. Regional Flood Planning Group: 
  Region 2 Lower Red-Sulphur-Cypress Regional Flood Planning Group 
 

3. Authority of Law Under Which the Applicant Was Created: 
  Texas Local Government Code Chapter 391 
 

4. Applicant’s Official Representative: 
  Mary Beth Rudel, Executive Director 
  4808 Elizabeth St., Texarkana, TX  75503 
  903-255-3520 direct, 903-832-3441 fax 
  mrudel@atcog.org 
  Tax ID: 75-1293383 
 

5. DUNS Number: 
  05-970-1052 
 

6. Total Proposed Planning Cost Estimate 
$2,078,400.00 

 
7.  Total Grant Funds Requested from TWBD 

  $2,078,400.00 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:mrudel@atcog.org


 

 
 
 
II._ADMINISTRATIVE DOCUMENTATION 
 
8. Written designation from RFPG naming the authorized Planning Group 

Sponsor: 
See RFPG Sponsor Designation Form included 
 

9. RFPG’s adopted by-laws 
See RFPG’s bylaws included 

 

10.  Written documentation that the RFPG considered additional, region- 
specific, public notice requirements at a meeting in accordance with 
31 TAC 361.12(3) prior to taking action regarding its application for 
funding. 
 

In the RFPG meeting that took place on September 14, 2023, Reeves 

Hayter began the discussion of item number 7 by reading a list of public 

notification methods used by Region 2 during the first round of flood 

planning. These included posting notices on the Region 2 website, the 

bulletin board at the ATCOG office building, the Texas Register, county 

clerk’s offices, public libraries, and courthouses. Discussion took place 

among the group and Mr. Hayter suggested posting notices in local 

newspapers as a release, to avoid publication costs. David Weidman 

suggested posting notices on the websites of local water entities such as 

Riverbend Water Resources District and the Sulphur River Basin Authority. 

Greg Carter asked that the group include the Northeast Texas Municipal 

Water District as well. Laura-Ashley Overdyke suggested posting notices to 

soil and water conservation districts websites and on social media. Mary 

Beth Rudel announced that we could post notices on the ATCOG facebook 

page and the linked-in account. Discussion took place about including 

photographs, as well. 



Andy Endsley commented on the lack of public participation at 

commissioners’ court meetings in Hopkins County, as well. Mr. Hayter 

asked the group if utilizing these additional public notification methods 

would be helpful and the group agreed. Mr. Hayter then made a motion to 

add a link from the ATCOG website to the RFPG website and social media 

platforms, in addition to preparing news release statements to be 

distributed to the larger regional newspapers for potential publication. Greg 

Carter seconded the motion and the motion carried unanimously. 

See approved RFPG meeting minutes included. 



III. PLANNING INFORMATION

11. A detailed scope of work for proposed planning. Include the Scope of
Work for the Second Cycle of Regional Flood Planning document
prepared by TWDB:

See TWDB Regional Flood Planning Grant Scope of Work included 

12. A task budget for detailed scope of work by task.
See task budget included 

13. Is the RFPG suggesting modifications to the TWDB’s proposed task
budget?

No, no modifications suggested. 

14. If yes to No. 13 above, provide written justification for the changes.
Not applicable 

15. An expense budget for scope of work by expense category. Example is
included.

CATEGORY TOTAL AMOUNT 
Contractor Other Expenses1 $15,000.00 
Contractor Salaries and Wages2 $85,000.00 
Subcontract Services $2,013,360.00 
Voting Planning Member Travel 3 $5,000.00 
Total Study Cost4 $2,078,400.00 

16. A time schedule for completing detailed Scope of Work by task
See time schedule for completing detailed Scope of Work by task provided 

by TWDB included 

17. Specific deliverables for each task in Scope of Work
See TWDB Regional Flood Planning Grant Scope of Work included 



18. Method of Monitoring Study Progress:

ATCOG will work closely with the Technical Consultant and request monthly progress
reports.  The consultant provided reports will be compared to the time schedule and
activity.  The reported activity and completed deliverables will be verified by staff and
reports relayed to the Group each month, and the TWDB as specified.  Group
meetings will be held as needed, but no less than on a quarterly basis.  Executive
Committee calls may also be scheduled between meetings to assist the Technical
Consultant and help continue progress if needed.  Any delays will be immediately
reported to the Chair and a plan of action developed.  As tasks are completed, they
may be added to the website for Group review.

19. Requested Revisions to the Draft Contract Language: The Sponsors should
review the Draft Contract Language posted on the TWDB website and provide
any suggested revisions or questions with their RFA submission.

No revisions requested. 

20. Vendor Set-Up Form

See Vendor Set-up Form included 

21. The names of individual that will sign the Contract in DocuSign, along with
the individual’s email address.

Mary Beth Rudel 
Executive Director 
mrudel@atcog.org 

22. Correspondence Information: (used to populate the Correspondence section
of the Regional Flood Planning Grant Contract).

For CONTRACTOR: 

Contract Issues:  
Name: Mary Beth Rudel 
Company: Ark-Tex Council of Governments 
Address: 4808 Elizabeth Street 
City, State ZIP: Texarkana, Texas 75503 
Email: mrudel@atcog.org  

mailto:mrudel@atcog.org
mailto:mrudel@atcog.org


Payment Request Submission: 
Name: Callie-Anne Kennedy 
Company: Ark-Tex Council of Governments 
Address: 4808 Elizabeth Street 
City, State ZIP: Texarkana, Texas 75503 

Physical Address: 
Building Name: Ark-Tex Council of Governments 
Address: 4808 Elizabeth Street 
City, State ZIP: Texarkana, Texas 75503 



IV. WRITTEN ASSURANCES

The proposed planning does not duplicate any known projects within the Region 2 
designated area.   



Regional Flood Planning Group
Sponsor Designation Form

-

Chairperson Name

Region Name

Region Name

Signature: _________________________________________  Date: ____________________________

I _______________________________ of Sponsor

Name Sponsor

Name Sponsor 

Name

I 

Sponsor

Signature: _________________________________________  Date: ____________________________





 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 



 
 

   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 
 

   
 

 ...............................................................................................................  
  .........................................................................................................................................  
  .....................................................................................................................  

 .....................................................................  

 ...............................................................  

 ............................................................................................  

 .....................................................................................  
  .........................................................................................................................................  
  ....................................................................................................................................  
  .............................................................................................................  
  .....................................................................................................................  
  ............................................................................................................................................  
  ..................................................................................................................................  
  ..........................................................................................................  

 ............................................................................  
  ........................................................................................................................  
  ...................................................................................................................  
  ..................................................................................................................................  

 ................................................................................  

 .............................................................................................................  
  ...............................................................................  
  .................................................................................................................................................  
 ............................................................................................................................  
  .........................................................................................................................  
  .......................................................................................................................  
  ........................................................................................................................  
  ....................................................................................................................  

 .......................................................................................................  
  ............................................................................................................  
  ..............................................................................................................................  
  ..............................................................................................................  
  ..................................................................................................................................................  
  ................................................................................................................................................  
  .................................................................................  
  .............................................................................................  
  .................................................................................................................................................  

 ......................................................................................  
  ..............................................................................................  
  ..............................................................................................................  



 

  

 .......................  
  ......................................................  

 ...................................................................................  
  ....................................................................................  
  .................................................................................................................  
  ....................................................................................................................  

 .................................................................................................  
  ....................................................................................................................................  
  .......................................................................................................................................  
  .................................................................................................................................................  
  ...............................................................................................................................................  
  ..........................................................................................................................  
  ................................................................................................................................  

 ..........................................................  

 ................................................................................  

 ...................................................  

 .................................................................  



 
 

   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

  

 

 

 

 

 



 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

  

 

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)



 

  

 

 



 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

  

 

(a)

(b)



 
 

   
 

 

 

 

 
(a) 

 
(b) 

 
(c) 

 

 



 
 

   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
(a) 

 



 
 

   
 

  
 

 
 

 
(b) 

 

 

 
(a) 

 
(b) 

 

 
(a) 

 
 

 



 
 

   
 

(b) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  





Meeting Minutes  
Region 2 Lower Red-Sulphur-Cypress Flood Planning Group Public Meeting 

September 14, 2023 
2:00 p.m. 

at 
Northeast Texas Community College, Community Room-(Hum 101), 2886 FM 1735, Chapel Hill Road, 

Mount Pleasant, TX 75455, and Via Zoom Webinar/Teleconference 

Roll Call: 
Voting Member Interest Category Present (x) /Absent ( ) / Alternate 

Present (*) 
Preston Ingram (William) Agricultural interests 
Andy Endsley Counties X 
W. Greg Carter Electric generating utilities X 
Laura-Ashley Overdyke Environmental interests X 

Casey Johnson Industries 
Dustin Henslee Municipalities 
Troy Hudson Public 
R. Reeves Hayter River authorities X 
Kelly Mitchell Small business 
David Weidman Water districts X 
Susan Whitfield Water utilities 

Non-voting Member Agency Present(x)/Absent( )/ 
Alternate Present (*) 

James (Clay) Shipes Texas Parks and Wildlife Department 
Andrea Sanders Texas Division of Emergency Management 
Darrell Dean Texas Department of Agriculture 
Tony Resendez Texas State Soil and Water Conservation 

Board 
X 

Trey Bahm General Land Office 

Anita Machiavello Texas Water Development Board (TWDB) X 
Michelle Havelka Texas Commission on Environmental 

Quality 
Lisa M. Mairs USACE, Galveston District 
Travis Wilsey USACE, Tulsa District 
Randy Whiteman RFPG 1 Liaison 
Ellen Mott Red River Valley Association 
Jason Dupree TxDOT – Atlanta District 
Dan Perry TxDOT – Paris District 



 
Quorum: 
Quorum: Yes 
Number of voting members or alternates representing voting members present: 5 
Number required for quorum per current voting membership of 10: 5 
 
 
Other Meeting Attendees: ** 
Paul Prange – ATCOG 
Mary Beth Rudel – ATCOG 
Kathy McCollum - ATCOG 
Joshua McClure – Halff Associates Team 
Parker Moore – Halff Associates Team 
David Rivera – Halff Associates Team 
 
 
**Meeting attendee names were gathered from those who entered information for joining the Zoom 
meeting. 
 
All meeting materials are available for the public at: 
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/flood/planning/regions/schedule.asp.  

http://www.twdb.texas.gov/flood/planning/regions/schedule.asp


AGENDA ITEM NO. 1: Call to Order 
Reeves Hayter called the meeting to order at 2:23 p.m. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2: Welcome  
Reeves Hayter welcomed members and attendees to the Region 2 Lower Red-Sulphur-Cypress Flood 
Planning Group meeting. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3: Confirmation of attendees / determination of a quorum  
Reeves Hayter asked ATCOG staff member, Paul Prange, to conduct a roll call of attendees. 
Each present voting and non-voting member of the Region 2 Lower Red-Sulphur-Cypress RFPG 
introduced themselves, establishing that a quorum had been met.  Five voting members were present 
along with two non-voting members.  

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4: Public comments – limit 3 minutes per person  
Reeves Hayter opened the floor for public comments.  No public comments were received. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5: *Consider approval of minutes for the meetings held Thursday, June 15, 2023 
Reeves Hayter opened the floor for discussion and approval of the minutes from the previous meeting.  
A motion was made by David Weidman and was seconded by Greg Carter to approve the minutes as 
presented.  The motion carried unanimously.   

PRESENTATIONS 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6: *Consider approval of applications submitted by interested parties, to serve as a 
voting member of the Region 2 Flood Planning Group, representing the category of Agricultural 
Interests: 
Reeves Hayter announced that Preston Ingram formerly held this position but recently resigned from 
the flood planning group due to taking on additional duties at work.  Mr. Hayter asked if any applications 
have been submitted and Paul Prange stated that no applications have been received to date.  Mr. 
Hayter asked the group to encourage anyone with an agricultural background to submit an application 
for this open position If they are interested in serving on the Region 2 Flood Planning Group Board of 
Directors during round 2. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7: *Consider additional, region specific, public notice requirements for Region 2 as 
required by Texas Administrative Code 361.12(a)(3).  Texas Administrative Code 361.70(c) requires 
that this meeting take place prior to the Planning Group Sponsor submitting its application for funding 
on behalf of the RFPG. 
Reeves Hayter began the discussion by reading a list of public notification methods used by Region 2 
during the first round of flood planning.  These included posting notices on the Region 2 website, the 
bulletin board at the ATCOG office building, the Texas Register, county clerk’s offices, public libraries, 
and courthouses.  Discussion took place among the group and Mr. Hayter suggested posting notices in 
local newspapers as a release, to avoid publication costs.  David Weidman suggested posting notices on 
the websites of local water entities such as Riverbend Water Resources District and the Sulphur River 
Basin Authority.  Greg Carter asked that the group include the Northeast Texas Municipal Water District, 

pprange
Highlight



as well.  Laura-Ashley Overdyke suggested posting notices to soil and water conservation districts 
websites and on social media.  Mary Beth Rudel announced that we could post notices on the ATCOG 
facebook page and the linked-in account.  Discussion took place about including photographs, as well.  
Andy Endsley commented on the lack of public participation at commissioners’ court meetings in 
Hopkins County, as well.  Mr. Hayer asked the group if utilizing these additional public notification 
methods would be helpful and the group agreed.  Mr. Hayter then made a motion to add a link from the 
ATCOG website to the RFPG website and social media platforms, in addition to preparing news release 
statements to be distributed to the larger regional newspapers for potential publication.  Greg Carter 
seconded the motion and the motion carried unanimously. 

AGENDAITEM NO. 8: *Discuss and consider designating a Sponsor for the Region 2 Flood Planning 
Group. 
Reeves Hayter stated that he had previously discussed round 2 sponsorship with Chris Brown and Paul 
Prange.  Mr. Hayter announced that he thought ATCOG did an outstanding job for the Region 2 Flood 
Planning Group during the first round of planning and proposed that the group continue with ATCOG as 
the Sponsor for round 2.  The motion was seconded by Greg Carter.  The motion carried unanimously. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9: Texas Water Development Board Update: 
Reeves Hayter turned the floor over to Anita Machiavello, who asked the group to visit the TWDB 
website and review the newsletter, which contains pertinent information relating to the flood planning 
process.  An updated newsletter will be available in October and the TWDB is currently reviewing the 
amended flood plan submitted in July.  RFI letters will be submitted by TWDB in October and it will 
follow the final plan timeline, allowing the RFPG 2 weeks to reply to the letter.  An extension for review 
may be requested by the RFPG if necessary.  TWDB is working on providing additional guidance on 
closing out Round 1 and starting up Round 2.  Conceptual guidance is available on the TWDB website for 
the proposed Round 2 process.  Greg Carter asked the consultants if two weeks is adequate to respond 
to the RFI.  Josh McClure stated that two weeks should be enough time, depending upon the extent of 
the questions.  Ms. Machiavello announced that no work can be performed after December 29, 2023 
and all reimbursement request should be submitted to TWDB by February 29, 2024. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10: Region 1 Canadian-Upper Red Regional Flood Planning Group Updates: 
Reeves Hayter asked for any updates relating to Region 1 flood planning activities.  Region 1 liaison, 
Randy Whiteman, was not present so Anita Machiavello stated that Region 1 was on the same pace as 
Region 2 at this time. 

TECHNICAL CONSULTANT UPDATE 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11:  Technical Presentation by Halff Associates, Inc. 
1. Planning Process Update

a. Regional Flood Plan accepted by TWDB on July 25, 2023
b. Amended Regional Flood Plan submitted on July 14, 2023

1. No comments received yet
2. Revisions and all work must be complete by December 29,

2023

pprange
Highlight



I 

c. TWDB Preparing State Flood Plan for submittal by September 1, 2024

2. Additional work performed by consultant

a. Preparing more detailed documentation of FMS/Ps for use by sponsors

Reeves Hayter turned the floor over to Joshua McClure who presented a brief technical update to the 
group focusing on the timeline of deliverables mentioned earlier by Anita Machiavello. Mr. McClure 
announced that the TWDB is preparing the State Flood Plan for submittal by September 1, 2024 and it 
will include the Amended Regional Flood Plans. The technical consultant is now preparing more detailed 
documentation of FMS/Ps for use by the Sponsor and no substantial additional work will be allowed by 
TWDB during Round 1. Reeves Hayter asked Mr. McClure if anyone in the region has contacted Halff 
Associates about a new project that was not previously submitted. Mr.McClure stated that he has not 
been contacted by any entity asking to include a project in the plan, but he expects that may change due 
to more funding being appropriated by the legislature for projects during the next couple of years. Mr. 
Hayter asked Ms. Machiavello when the TWDB rules for the distribution of additional funds may be 
available. Ms. Machiavello stated that the updated rules will be provided to the TWDB in October of 
2023 and the RFA package for Sponsors will be provided to the TWDB in November of 2023. Approved 
funding amounts should be available to the public some time during the Spring of 2024, after the TWDB 
approves the Amended Flood Plans in February or March of 2024. 

OTHER BUSINESS 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12: Update from Planning Group Sponsor 

Reeves Hayter turned the floor over to Paul Prange who asked Mary Beth Rudel if Chris Brown provided 
any updates for her to share. Mrs. Rudel mentioned that Anita Machiavello met with ATCOG via 
webinar a few days ago to provide updates to the deliverable timeframe. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13: Consider date and agenda items for next meeting 

Reeves Hayter opened the floor for discussion. The Region 2 RFPG board members agreed to conduct 
the next Region 2 Flood Planning Group Board of Directors Meeting on Thursday, December 7, 2023, at 
2:00 pm at location to be determined and via webinar/teleconference. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14: Adjourn 

Reeves Hayter asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting. A motion was made by Laura-Ashley 
Overdyke and seconded by Andy Endsley. The motion carried and the meeting was adjourned at 2:59 
p.m.

Q a
•

,

;on 2 Lower Red-Sulphu,-Cypn,ss RFPG at a meet;ng held on 12/07/2023. 

Reeves Hayter, CH IR 



Exhibit A 

TWDB Regional Flood 
Planning Grant Scope of Work 

January 2024 

Disclaimer: This document includes the standard Scope of Work developed for Regional 
Flood Planning Grant Contracts by the Texas Water Development Board. The Scope of 
Work for certain grant contracts may contain revised language to reflect requested edits 
from Regional Flood Planning Groups and Planning Group Sponsors

Second Cycle of Regional Flood Plan Development 
(2023–2028) 



Scope of Work 

February 2022 2 of 29 

This page is intentionally left blank. 



Scope of Work 

February 2022 3 of 29 

Table of Contents 
Task 1 – Planning Area Description................................................................................................. 5 

Task 2A – Existing Condition Flood Risk Analyses ........................................................................... 6 

Task 2B – Future Condition Flood Risk Analyses ............................................................................ 8 

Task 3A – Evaluation and Recommendations on Floodplain Management Practices ................. 10 

Task 3B – Flood Mitigation Needs Analysis .................................................................................. 11 

Task 3C – Flood Mitigation and Floodplain Management Goals .................................................. 13 

Task 4A – Identification, and Evaluation of Potential Flood Management Evaluations and 
Potentially Feasible Flood Mitigation Projects and Flood Management Strategies .... 14 

Task 4B – Preparation and Submission Technical Memorandum ................................................ 17 

Task 4C – Performance of Flood Management Evaluations ......................................................... 18 

Task 5A – Recommendation of Flood Management Evaluations, Flood Mitigation Projects and 
Flood Management Strategies ..................................................................................... 19 

Task 5B – Recommend a list of flood management evaluations to be performed by TWDB ...... 21 

Task 6A – Impacts of Regional Flood Plan .................................................................................... 23 

Task 6B – Contributions to and Impacts on Water Supply Development and the State Water 
Plan ............................................................................................................................... 23 

Task 7 – Flood Response Information and Activities .................................................................... 24 

Task 8 – Administrative, Regulatory, and Legislative Recommendations .................................... 25 

Task 9 – Flood Infrastructure Financing Analysis .......................................................................... 25 

Task 10 – Public Participation and Plan Adoption ........................................................................ 26 

Task 11 – Implementation and Comparison to Previous Regional Flood Plan ............................. 28 



Scope of Work 

October 2023  4 of 29 

Summary of Task and Associate Rules Reference 
 
Task 1 – Planning area description (361.30, 361.31, 361.32)  
Task 2 – Flood risk analyses  

Task 2A – Existing condition flood risk analyses (361.33)  
Task 2B – Future condition flood risk analyses (361.34)  

Task 3 – Floodplain management practices, needs analysis and flood protection goals  
Task 3A – Evaluation and recommendations on floodplain management practices (361.35)  
Task 3B – Flood Mitigation Needs Analysis (361.36) 
Task 3C – Flood mitigation and floodplain management goals (361.37) 

Task 4 – Identification, assessment, and evaluations of flood FMEs, FMPs, and FMSs  
Task 4A – Identification and evaluation of potential flood management evaluations and 
potentially feasible flood mitigation projects and flood management strategies (361.38)  
Task 4B – Preparation and submission of technical memorandum  
Task 4C – Performance of Identified flood management evaluations 

Task 5  – Recommendation of flood management evaluations, flood mitigation projects and flood 
management strategies (361.39) 

Task 5A – Recommendation of flood management evaluations, flood mitigation projects and 
flood management strategies (361.39) 
Task 5B – Recommend a list of flood management evaluations to be performed by TWDB  

Task 6 – Plan impacts and contribution to water supply of the regional flood plan  
Task 6A – Impacts of regional flood plan (361.40)  
Task 6B – Contributions to and impacts on water supply development and the state water plan 
(361.41)  

Task 7 – Flood response information and activities (361.42)  
Task 8 – Administrative, regulatory, and legislative recommendations (361.43)  
Task 9 – Flood infrastructure financing analysis (361.44)  
Task 10 – Public participation and plan adoption  
Task 11 – Implementation and comparison to previous regional flood plan (361.45)   



Scope of Work 

October 2023  5 of 29 

Task 1 – Planning Area Description 
In addition to generally meeting all applicable rules and statute requirements governing regional and 
state flood planning under 31 Texas Administrative Code (TAC) Chapters 361 and 362, this portion of 
work must specifically include all work necessary to meet all the requirements of 31 TAC §361.30, 
361.31, and 361.32. 

The objective of this task is to prepare a standalone chapter to be included in the 2028 Regional Flood 
Plan that describes the Flood Planning Region (FPR).  

This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and 
guidance required to prepare a chapter that includes: 

1. Brief, general descriptions of the following: 
a. social and economic character of the region such as information on development, 

population, economic activity; 
b. the areas in the FPR that are flood-prone and the types of major flood risks to life and 

property in the region; 
c. key historical flood events within the region including associated fatalities and loss of 

property, when the information is available; 
d. key political subdivisions with flood-related regulatory authority or political subdivisions 

that perform flood planning, floodplain management, or flood mitigation activities; 
e. the general extent of local regulation and development codes relevant to existing and 

future flood risk; 
f. agricultural and natural resources most impacted by flooding; and 
g. existing local and regional flood plans within the FPR. 

2. A general description of the location, condition, and functionality of existing natural flood 
mitigation features and constructed major flood infrastructure within the FPR as identified in 
the rules and guidance document.  

3. Include a tabulated summary and GIS map of existing infrastructure. 
4. Include an inventory and feature class of low water crossings. 
5. Include a specific levee and dam inventory including the location, designated owner of every 

major levee and dam located within the regional planning area, and an indication of whether or 
not levees have FEMA accreditation or not. 

6. Include an assessment of condition and functionality for existing major flood risk reduction 
infrastructure. 

7. Please provide a general description by general geographic location (e.g., within political 
subdivisions) of the condition and functionality of key natural flood mitigation features or major 
flood infrastructure by feature type and provide the name of the owner and operator of the 
flood infrastructure.  For non-functional or deficient natural flood mitigation features or major 
flood infrastructure, explain, in general, the reasons for the features or infrastructure being non-
functional or deficient by feature type. 

8. A general description of the location, source of funding, and anticipated benefits of proposed or 
ongoing major infrastructure and flood mitigation projects in the FPR, including: 

a. new structural flood mitigation projects currently under construction;  
b. non-structural flood mitigation projects currently being implemented; and  



Scope of Work 

October 2023  6 of 29 

c. structural and non-structural flood mitigation projects with dedicated funding to 
construct and the expected year of completion. 

9. A review and summary of relevant existing planning documents in the FPR. Documents to be 
summarized include those referenced under 31 TAC §361.22. 

The information gathered and developed in preparation of this chapter must be subject to the following 
review process prior to submission of any deliverables: 

1. Review of the Regional Flood Plan chapter documents and related information by RFPG 
members.  

2. Modifications to the chapter document based on RFPG, public, and/or agency comments.  
3. Submittal of chapter document to TWDB for review and approval.  
4. All effort required to obtain final approval of the Regional Flood Plan chapter by TWDB.  

Deliverables: A complete Chapter 1 describing the FPR, existing natural flood mitigation features, 
constructed major flood infrastructure, and major infrastructure and flood mitigation projects currently 
under development. A tabulated summary and GIS map of existing infrastructure including condition 
and functionality. Any additional deliverables identified in the TWDB Flood Planning guidance 
documents. 

Task 2A – Existing Condition Flood Risk Analyses 
In addition to generally meeting all applicable rules and statute requirements governing regional and 
state flood planning under 31 TAC Chapters 361 and 362, this portion of work must specifically include 
all work necessary to meet all the requirements of 31 TAC §361.33. 

The objective of this task is to prepare a chapter to be combined with Task 2B and included in the 2028 
Regional Flood Plan that describes the existing and future condition flood risk in the FPR.  

The RFPGs must perform existing condition flood risk analyses for the region comprising: (1) flood 
hazard analyses that determine the location, magnitude, and frequency of flooding; (2) flood exposure 
analyses to identify who and what might be harmed within the region; and (3) vulnerability analyses to 
identify vulnerabilities of communities and critical facilities. 

The information developed must be used to assist the RFPG to establish priorities in subsequent 
planning tasks, to identify areas that need Flood Management Evaluations (FMEs), and to efficiently 
deploy its resources. 

This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and 
guidance required to: 

1. Perform existing condition flood hazard analyses to determine the location and magnitude of 
10% annual chance,  1% annual chance and 0.2% annual chance flood events as follows: 

a. collect data and conduct analyses sufficient to characterize the existing conditions for 
the planning area; 

b. identify areas within each FPR where hydrologic and hydraulic model results are already 
available and summarize the information; 

c. utilize best available data, including hydrologic and hydraulic models for each area; 



Scope of Work 

October 2023 7 of 29 

d. identification of known flood-prone areas based on location of hydrologic features,
historic flooding, and local knowledge obtained from outreach activities and public
meetings;

e. all analyses shall consider the location of existing levees that do not meet FEMA
accreditation as inundated by flooding without those structures in place.  Provisionally
accredited levees may be allowed to provide flood protection, unless best available
information demonstrates otherwise;

f. the analyses shall consider existing dams, when data is available;
g. prepare a map showing areas identified by the RFPG as having an annual likelihood of

inundation of greater than or equal to 10%, 1% and 0.2%, the areal extent of this
inundation, and the sources of flooding for each area; and

h. prepare a map showing gaps in inundation boundary mapping and identify known flood-
prone areas based on location of hydrologic features, historic flooding and/or local
knowledge.

2. Develop existing condition flood exposure analyses, using the information identified in the flood
hazard analyses to identify who and what might be harmed within the region for, at a minimum,
10% annual chance, 1% annual chance and 0.2% annual chance flood events as follows:

a. analyses of existing development within the existing condition floodplain and the
associated flood hazard exposure;

b. may include only those flood mitigation projects with dedicated construction funding
and scheduled for completion prior to adoption of the next state flood plan.

c. must consider the population and property located in areas where existing levees do
not meet FEMA accreditation as inundated by flooding without the levees in place.
Provisionally accredited structures may be allowed to provide flood protection, unless
best available information demonstrates otherwise.

d. must consider available datasets to estimate the potential flood hazard exposure
including, but not limited to:

i. number of residential properties and associated population;
ii. number of non-residential properties;

iii. other public infrastructure;
iv. major industrial and power generation facilities;
v. number and types of critical facilities;

vi. number of roadway crossings;
vii. length of roadway segments; and

viii. agricultural area and value of crops exposed.
e. must include a qualitative description of expected loss of function, which is the effect

that a flood event could have on the function of inundated structures (residential,
commercial, industrial, public, or others) and infrastructure, such as transportation,
health and human services, water supply, wastewater treatment, utilities, energy
generation, and emergency services.

3. Perform existing condition vulnerability analyses as follows:
a. use relevant data and tools to identify resilience of communities located in flood-prone

areas.



Scope of Work 

October 2023  8 of 29 

b. consider and identify factors such as proximity to a floodplain to identify vulnerability of 
critical facilities, in accordance with EA guidance. . 

4. All data produced as part of the existing condition flood exposure analysis and the existing 
condition vulnerability analysis must include: 

a. underlying flood event return frequency; 
b. type of flood risk; 
c. county; 
d. existing flood authority boundaries; 
e. social vulnerability indices for counties and census tracts; and 
f. other categories as determined by RFPGs or in TWDB Flood Planning guidance 

documents. 

The information gathered and developed in preparation of this chapter must be subject to the following 
review process prior to submission of any deliverables: 

1. Review of the chapter documents and related information by RFPG members.  
2. Modifications to the chapter document based on RFPG, public, and/or agency comments.  
3. Submittal of chapter document to TWDB for review and approval.  
4. All effort required to obtain final approval of the Regional Flood Plan chapter by TWDB.  

Deliverables:  

• Prepare a stand-alone Chapter 2 (including work from both Tasks 2A & 2B) to be included in the 
2028 Regional Flood Plan. 

• Prepare maps according to 1(g) and 1(h). 
• A tabulated list and GIS map of all pertinent information. All maps should be submitted with 

underlying GIS data utilized to prepare them.  
• Any additional deliverables identified in the TWDB Flood Planning guidance documents.  

Task 2B – Future Condition Flood Risk Analyses 
In addition to generally meeting all applicable rules and statute requirements governing regional and 
state flood planning under 31 TAC Chapters 361 and 362, this portion of work must, in particular, 
include all work necessary to meet all the requirements of 31 TAC §361.34. 

The objective of this task is to prepare a chapter to be combined with Task 2A and included in the 2028 
Regional Flood Plan that describes the existing and future condition flood risk in the FPR.  

RFPGs must perform future condition flood risk analyses for the region comprising: (1) flood hazard 
analyses that determine the location, magnitude and frequency of flooding; (2) flood exposure analyses 
to identify who and what might be harmed within the region; and (3) vulnerability analyses to identify 
vulnerabilities of communities and critical facilities. 

The information developed must be used to assist the RFPG to establish priorities in subsequent 
planning tasks, to identify areas that need FMEs, and to efficiently deploy its resources. 



Scope of Work 

October 2023 9 of 29 

This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and 
guidance required to: 

1. Perform future condition flood hazard analyses to determine the location and magnitude of 10%
annual chance, 1% annual chance and 0.2% annual chance flood events as follows:

a. collect data and conduct analyses sufficient to characterize the future conditions for the
planning area based on“a "no-act”on" scenario of approximately 30 years of continued
development and population growth under current development trends and patterns,
and existing flood regulations and policies. RFPGs shall consider the following as
available and pertinent in the FPR:

i. current land use and development trends and practices and associated
projected population based on the most recently adopted State Water Plan
decade and population nearest the next regional flood plan adoption date plus
approximately 30 years or as provided for in TWDB Flood Planning guidance
documents;

ii. reasonable assumptions regarding locations of residential development and
associated population growth;

iii. anticipated relative sea level change and subsidence based on existing
information;

iv. anticipated changes to the functionality of the existing floodplain;
v. anticipated sedimentation in flood control structures and major geomorphic

changes in riverine, playa, or coastal systems based on existing information;
vi. assumed completion of flood mitigation projects currently under construction

or that already have dedicated construction funding; and
vii. other factors deemed relevant by the RFPG.

b. identify areas within each FPR where future condition hydrologic and hydraulic model
results are already available and summarize the information;

c. utilize best available data, including hydrologic and hydraulic models for each area;
d. where future condition results are not available, but existing condition hydrologic and

hydraulic model results are already available, the RFPGs may modify hydraulic models or
existing condition flood hazard boundary to identify future conditions flood risk for 1%
and 0.2% annual chance storms based on simplified assumptions in accordance with EA
guidance.

e. prepare a map showing areas of 1% and 0.2% annual chance of inundation for future
conditions, the areal extent of this inundation, and the types of flooding for each area.

f. prepare a map showing gaps in inundation boundary mapping and identify known flood-
prone areas based on location of hydrologic features, historic flooding, and/ or local
knowledge.

2. Perform future condition flood exposure analyses using the information identified in the
potential future condition flood hazard analysis to identify who and what might be harmed
within the region for the potential future condition 10% annual chance, future condition 1%
annual chance and future condition 0.2% annual chance flood events. At the RFPGs’ discretion,
the future condition flood exposure analysis may include an analysis of existing and future
developments within the future condition floodplain and the associated flood hazard exposure.

3. Perform future condition vulnerability analyses as follows:



Scope of Work 

October 2023  10 of 29 

a. identify resilience of communities located in flood-prone areas identified as part of the 
future condition flood exposure analyses, utilizing relevant data and tools. 

b. identify vulnerabilities of critical facilities to flooding by looking at factors such as 
proximity to a floodplain and other factors as included in the EA guidance. 

4. All data produced as part of the future condition flood exposure analysis and the future 
condition vulnerability analysis must include: 

a. underlying flood event return frequency; 
b. type of flood risk; 
c. county; 
d. existing flood authority boundaries; 
e. social vulnerability indices for counties and census tracts; and 
f. other categories as determined in TWDB Flood Planning guidance documents. 

The information gathered and developed in preparation of this chapter must be subject to the following 
review process prior to submission of any deliverables: 

1. Review of the chapter documents and related information by RFPG members.  
2. Modifications to the chapter document based on RFPG, public, and/or agency comments.  
3. Submittal of chapter document to TWDB for review and approval.  
4. All effort required to obtain final approval of the Regional Flood Plan chapter by TWDB.  

Deliverables:  

• Prepare a stand-alone Chapter 2 (including work from both Tasks 2A & 2B) to be included in the 
2028 Regional Flood Plan. 

• Prepare maps according to 1(e) and 1(f). A tabulated list and GIS map of all pertinent 
information. All maps should be submitted with underlying GIS data utilized to prepare them.  

• Any additional deliverables identified in the TWDB Flood Planning guidance documents. 
 

Task 3A – Evaluation and Recommendations on Floodplain 
Management Practices 
In addition to generally meeting all applicable rules and statute requirements governing regional and 
state flood planning under 31 TAC Chapters 361 and 362, this portion of work must, in particular, 
include all work necessary to meet all the requirements of 31 TAC §361.35. 

Recognizing the extent that previous and current practices may have increased flood risks, including 
residual risks, and considering broad floodplain management and land use approaches that will avoid 
increasing flood risks, and avoid negatively affecting neighboring areas, the RFPG must accomplish the 
following tasks.  

This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and 
guidance required to: 

1. Consider the extent to which a lack of, insufficient, or ineffective current floodplain 
management and land use practices, regulations, policies, and trends related to land use, 



Scope of Work 

October 2023  11 of 29 

economic development, and population growth, allow, cause, or otherwise encourage increases 
to flood risks to both: 

a. existing population and property, and 
b. future population and property. 

2. Take into consideration the future flood hazard exposure analyses performed under Task 2B, 
consider the extent to which the 1% annual chance floodplain, along with associated flood risks, 
may change over time in response to anticipated development and associated population 
growth and other relevant man-made causes, and assess how to best address these potential 
changes. 

3. Based on the analyses in (1) and (2), make recommendations regarding forward-looking 
floodplain management and land use recommendations, and economic development practices 
and strategies, that should be implemented by entities within the FPR. These region-specific 
recommendations may include floodplain management and land use standards and should focus 
on how to best address the changes in (2) for entities within the region. These 
recommendations will inform recommended strategies for inclusion in the Regional Flood Plan. 

4. RFPGs may also choose to adopt region-specific, floodplain management or land use or other 
standards that impact flood-risk, that may vary geographically across the region, that each entity 
in the FPR must adopt prior to the RFPG including in the Regional Flood Plan any Flood 
Management Evaluations, Flood Mitigation Projects, or Flood Management Strategies that are 
sponsored by or that will otherwise be implemented by that entity. 

5. Consider example floodplain management and infrastructure protection standards provided by 
TWDB. 

The information gathered and developed in preparation of this chapter must be subject to the following 
review process prior to submission of any deliverables: 

1. Review of the chapter documents and related information by RFPG members.  
2. Modifications to the chapter document based on RFPG, public, and/or agency comments.  
3. Submittal of chapter document to TWDB for review and approval. 
4. All effort required to obtain final approval of the Regional Flood Plan chapter by TWDB.  

Deliverables:  

• Prepare a stand-alone Chapter 3 (including work from Tasks 3A,3B, & 3C) to be included in the 
2028 Regional Flood Plan. 

• List region-specific recommendations regarding forward-looking floodplain management and 
land use, which may include minimum floodplain management and land use standards. 

• Any additional deliverables identified in the TWDB Flood Planning guidance documents. 

Task 3B – Flood Mitigation Needs Analysis 
In addition to generally meeting all applicable rules and statute requirements governing regional and 
state flood planning under 31 TAC Chapters 361 and 362, this portion of work must, in particular, 
include all work necessary to meet all the requirements of 31 TAC §361.36. 

The RFPG must conduct the analysis in a manner that will ensure the most effective and efficient use of 
the resources available to the RFPG. 



Scope of Work 

October 2023 12 of 29 

This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and 
guidance required to: 

1. Based on the analyses developed by the RFPG under Tasks 2A through 3B and any additional
analyses or information developed using available screening-level models or methods, the RFPG
must identify locations within the FPR that the RFPG considers to have the greatest flood
mitigation and flood risk study needs by considering:

a. the areas in the FPR that the RFPG identified as the most prone to flooding that
threatens life and property;

b. the relative locations, extent, and performance of current floodplain management and
land use policies and infrastructure located within the FPR, particularly within the
locations described in (a);

c. areas identified by the RFPG as prone to flooding that don't have adequate inundation
maps;

d. areas identified by the RFPG as prone to flooding that don't have hydrologic and
hydraulic models;

e. areas with an emergency need;
f. existing modeling analyses and flood risk mitigation plans within the FPR;
g. flood mitigation projects already identified and evaluated by other flood mitigation

plans and studies;
h. documentation of historic flooding events;
i. flood mitigation projects already being implemented; and
j. any other factors that the RFPG deems relevant to identifying the geographic locations

where potential FMEs and potentially feasible FMPs and FMSs must be identified and
evaluated under §361.38.

The information gathered and developed in preparation of this chapter must be subject to the following 
review process prior to submission of any deliverables: 

1. Review of the chapter documents and related information by RFPG members.
2. Modifications to the chapter document based on RFPG, public, and/or agency comments.
3. Submittal of chapter document to TWDB for review and approval.
4. All effort required to obtain final approval of the Regional Flood Plan chapter by TWDB.

Deliverables: 

• Prepare a stand-alone Chapter 3 (including work from Tasks 3A, & 3B and 3C) to be included in
the 2028 Regional Flood Plan.

• A map identifying the geographic locations within the FPR considered to have the greatest flood
mitigation and flood risk study needs where potential FMEs and potentially feasible FMPs and
FMSs must be evaluated

• A tabulated list and GIS map of all pertinent information. All maps should be submitted with
underlying GIS data utilized to prepare them.

• Any additional deliverables identified in the TWDB Flood Planning guidance documents.



Scope of Work 

October 2023  13 of 29 

Task 3C – Flood Mitigation and Floodplain Management Goals 
In addition to generally meeting all applicable rules and statute requirements governing regional and 
state flood planning under 31 TAC Chapters 361 and 362, this portion of work must, in particular, 
include all work necessary to meet all the requirements of 31 TAC §361.37. 

In this task, the RFPG must consider the Guidance Principles under 31 TAC §362.3, Tasks 1-3B, input 
from the public, and other relevant information and considerations. 

The RFPG must use these goals to guide the RFPG in carrying out the following Tasks 4A – 5.  

This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and 
guidance required to: 

1. Identify specific and achievable flood mitigation and floodplain management goals along with 
target years by which to meet those goals for the FPR to include, at a minimum, goals 
specifically addressing risks to life and property. 

2. Recognize and clearly state the levels of residual risk that will remain in the FPR even after the 
stated flood mitigation goals are fully met. 

3. Structure and present the goals and the residual risks in an easily understandable format for the 
public including in conformance with TWDB Flood Planning guidance documents. 

4. When appropriate, choose goals that apply to full single HUC8 watershed boundaries or 
coterminous groups of HUC8 boundaries within the FPR. 

5. Identify both short-term goals (10 years) and long-term goals (30 years). 

The information gathered and developed in preparation of this chapter must be subject to the following 
review process prior to submission of any deliverables: 

1. Review of the chapter documents and related information by RFPG members.  
2. Modifications to the chapter document based on RFPG, public, and/or agency comments.  
3. Submittal of chapter document to TWDB for review and approval.  
4. All effort required to obtain final approval of the Regional Flood Plan chapter by TWDB.  

Deliverables:  

• Prepare a stand-alone Chapter 3 (including work from Tasks 3A, 3B and 3C) to be included in the 
2028 Regional Flood Plan. 

• Identify flood mitigation and floodplain management goals considering minimum recommended 
flood protection goal provided by TWDB. 

• Identify specific and achievable flood mitigation and floodplain management goals (10 year and 
30 year) in an easily understandable format for the public.  

• Any additional deliverables identified in the TWDB Flood Planning guidance documents. 



Scope of Work 

October 2023  14 of 29 

Task 4A – Identification, and Evaluation of Potential Flood 
Management Evaluations and Potentially Feasible Flood 
Mitigation Projects and Flood Management Strategies 
In addition to generally meeting all applicable rules and statute requirements governing regional and 
state flood planning under 31 TAC Chapters 361 and 362, this portion of work must, in particular, 
include all work necessary to meet all the requirements of 31 TAC §361.38. 

Based on analyses and decisions under Tasks 2A through 4A the RFPG must identify and evaluate 
potential FMEs, and identify and evaluate potentially feasible FMPs and FMSs, including nature-based 
solutions, some of which may have already been identified by previous evaluations and analyses by 
others.  

This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and 
guidance required to:  

1. Receive public comment on a proposed process to be used by the RFPG to identify and select 
FMEs, FMPs, and FMSs for the 2028 Regional Flood Plan.  

2. Summarize the RFPG process for identifying potential FMEs and potentially feasible FMPs and 
FMSs and include a description of the process in the draft and final adopted Regional Flood Plan. 

3. Identify potentially feasible FMPs and FMSs in accordance with the RFPG established process. 
4. When evaluating FMPs and FMSs the RFPG must, at a minimum, identify one solution that 

provides flood mitigation associated with a 1% annual chance flood event. In instances where 
mitigating for 1% annual chance events is not feasible, the RFPG must document the reasons for 
its infeasibility, and at the discretion of the RFPG, other FMPs and FMSs to mitigate more 
frequent events may also be identified and evaluated based on TWDB Flood Planning guidance 
documents. 

5. For areas within the FPR that the RFPG does not yet have sufficient information or resources to 
identify potentially feasible FMPs and FMSs, the RFPG must identify areas for potential FMEs 
that may eventually result in FMPs and/or FMSs. 

6. The RFPG must evaluate potentially feasible FMPs and FMSs understanding that, upon 
evaluation and further inspection, some FMPs or FMSs initially identified as potentially feasible 
may be reclassified as infeasible. 

7. FMPs will be ranked in the state flood plan and  
a. must represent discrete, projects;  
b. must not entail an entire capital program or drainage masterplan; and  
c. may rely on other flood-related projects.  

8. Evaluations of potentially feasible FMPs and FMSs, as applicable, will require associated, 
detailed hydrologic and hydraulic modeling results that quantify the reduced impacts from flood 
events and the associated benefits and costs. Information may be based on previously 
performed evaluations of projects and related information. Evaluations of potentially feasible 
FMPs and FMSs must include the following information and be based on the following analyses: 

a. A reference to the specific flood mitigation or floodplain management goal addressed 
by the feasible FMP or FMS; 

b. A determination of whether FMP or FMS meets an emergency need; 



Scope of Work 

October 2023 15 of 29 

c. An indication regarding the potential use of federal funds, or other sources of funding,
as a component of the total funding mechanism;

d. An equitable comparison, as appropriate, and assessment among all FMSs and an
equitable comparison and assessment among all FMPs that the RFPG determines to be
potentially feasible;

e. A demonstration that the FMS or FMP will not negatively affect a neighboring area;
f. A quantitative reporting of the estimated benefits of the FMP or FMS, as applicable. This

includes reductions of flood impacts of the 1% annual chance flood event and other
storm events identified and evaluated if the project mitigates to a more frequent event
to include, but not limited to:

(1) associated flood events that must, at a minimum, include the 1% annual
chance flood event and other storm events identified and evaluated;

(2) reduction in habitable, equivalent living units flood risk;
(3) reduction in residential population flood risk;
(4) reduction in critical facilities flood risk;
(5) reduction in road closure occurrences;
(6) reduction in acres of active farmland and ranchland flood risk;
(7) estimated reduction in fatalities, when available;
(8) estimated reduction in injuries, when available;
(9) reduction in expected annual damages from residential, commercial, and

public property; and
(10) other benefits as deemed relevant by the RFPG including environmental

benefits and other public benefits;
(11) avoidance of future flood risk; and
(12) prevention of creation of future flood risk.

g. A quantitative reporting of the estimated capital cost of FMPs in accordance with TWDB
Flood Planning guidance documents;

h. For projects that will contribute to water supply, all relevant evaluations required under
§357.34(e) (relating to Identification and Evaluation of Potentially Feasible Water
Management Strategies and Water Management Strategy Projects), as determined by
the EA based on the type of contribution, and a description of its consistency with the
currently adopted State Water Plan;

i. A description of potential impacts and benefits from the FMS or FMP to the
environment, agriculture, recreational resources, navigation, water quality, erosion,
sedimentation, and impacts to any other resources deemed relevant by the RFPG;

j. A description of residual, post-project, flood risk and future risks associated with FMPs
including the risk of potential catastrophic failure and the potential for future increases
to these risks due to lack of maintenance;

k. Implementation issues including those related to rights-of-way, permitting, acquisitions,
relocations, utilities and transportation; and

l. Funding sources and options that exist or will be developed to pay for development,
operation, and maintenance of the FMS or FMP.

9. Flood Management Evaluation (FME) is proposed study to identify, assess and quantify flood risk
or identify, evaluate and recommend flood risk reduction solutions. Evaluations of potential



Scope of Work 

October 2023 16 of 29 

FMEs may be at a reconnaissance or screening-level, unsupported by associated detailed 
hydrologic and hydraulic analyses. These must be identified for areas that the RFPG considers a 
priority for flood risk evaluation but that do not yet have the required detailed hydrologic and 
hydraulic modeling or associated project evaluations available to evaluate specific FMPs or FMSs 
for recommendation in the Regional Flood Plan. Evaluations of potential FMEs must include the 
following analyses: 

a. A reference to the specific flood mitigation or floodplain management goal to be
addressed by the potential FME.

b. An indication of whether FME may meet an emergency need.
c. An indication regarding the potential use of federal funds, or other sources of funding as

a component of the total funding mechanism.
d. An equitable comparison and assessment among all FMEs.
e. An indication of whether hydrologic and or hydraulic models are already being

developed or are anticipated in the near future and that could be used in the FME.
f. A quantitative reporting of the estimated flood risk within the FME area, to include, as

applicable:
(1) Estimated habitable, living unit equivalent and associated population in FME

area;
(2) Estimated critical facilities in FME area;
(3) Estimated number of roads closures occurrences in FME area;
(4) Estimated acres of active farmland and ranchland in FME area; and
(5) A quantitative reporting of the estimated study cost of the FME and whether

the cost includes use of existing or development of new hydrologic or
hydraulic models.

g. For FMEs, RFPGs do not need to demonstrate that an FME will not negatively affect a
neighboring area.

10. RFPGs must evaluate and present potential FMEs and potentially feasible FMPs and FMSs with
sufficient specificity to allow state agencies to make financial or regulatory decisions to
determine consistency of the proposed action before the state agency with an approved
Regional Flood Plan.

11. Analyses must clearly designate a representative location of the FME and beneficiaries including
a map and designation of HUC12 and county location.

12. The RFPG may also use funding under this Task to actually perform a portion of the identified
Flood Management Evaluations and, in doing so, identify and evaluate additional Flood
Mitigation Projects that could be recommended under Task 5A. This task includes performing
work to actually carry out FMEs that may include work to perform hydrologic and hydraulic
modeling, for example, evaluating flood risks in areas with currently limited flood risk data, and
evaluating potential flood risk reduction solutions, including performing feasibility studies and
preliminary engineering needed to identify, evaluate, and recommend additional potentially
feasible FMPs.  Note that RFPGs must approve the list of FMEs to be performed under this Task
prior to expending grant funds for this purpose. Additional FMPs that are identified and
evaluated under this Task may be recommended under Task 5A.  FMEs that are performed
under this Task would not also be recommended as FMEs under Task 5B.

13. Analyses must be performed in accordance with TWDB Flood Planning guidance documents.



Scope of Work 

October 2023 17 of 29 

14. All data produced as part of the analyses under this task must be organized and summarized in
the Regional Flood Plan in accordance with TWDB Flood Planning guidance documents.

15. Rules to be considered in developing this chapter include relevant rules referenced under 31
TAC §361.22.

The information gathered and developed in preparation of this chapter must be subject to the following 
review process prior to submission of any deliverables: 

1. RFPG approval of the list of identified FMEs to also be performed under this Task.
2. Review of the chapter documents and related information by RFPG members.
3. Modifications to the chapter document based on RFPG, public, and/or agency comments.
4. Submittal of chapter document to TWDB for review and approval.
5. All effort required to obtain final approval of the Regional Flood Plan chapter by TWDB.

Deliverables: 

• Prepare a stand-alone Chapter 4 (including work from Tasks 4A, and 4C) to include analyses and
assessments used to identify potential FMEs, FMSs, and FMPs and all technical analyses of all
evaluated FMPs and FMSs to be included in the 2028 Regional Flood Plan.

• A list of the potentially feasible FMSs and associated FMPs that were identified by the RFPG.
• The TWDB Flood Planning guidance documents will include minimum data submittal

requirements and deliverable format.
• A map identifying the geographic locations within the FPR considered to have the greatest flood

mitigation and flood risk study needs where potential FMEs and potentially feasible FMPs and
FMSs must be evaluated. TWDB Flood Planning guidance documents will include minimum data
submittal requirements and deliverable format.

• Data must be organized and summarized in the Regional Flood Plan in accordance with TWDB
Flood Planning guidance documents.

• A tabulated list and GIS map of all pertinent information. All maps should be submitted with
underlying GIS data utilized to prepare them.

• Any additional deliverables identified in the TWDB Flood Planning guidance documents.

Task 4B – Preparation and Submission Technical Memorandum 
In addition to generally meeting all applicable rules and statute requirements governing regional and 
state flood planning under 31 TAC Chapters 361 and 362, this portion of work must, in particular, 
include all work necessary to meet all the requirements of 31 TAC §361.13(e). 

This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and 
guidance required to:  

1. Prepare a concise Technical Memorandum to include:
a. A list of existing political subdivisions within the FPR that have flood-related authorities

or responsibilities;
b. A list of previous and ongoing flood studies considered by the RFPG to be relevant to

development of the Regional Flood Plan;



Scope of Work 

October 2023 18 of 29 

c. A geodatabase and associated maps in accordance with TWDB Flood Planning guidance
documents that the RFPG considers to be best representation of the region-wide 1%
annual chance flood event and 0.2% annual chance flood event inundation boundaries,
and the type of flooding for each area, for use in its risk analysis, including indications of
locations where such boundaries remain undefined;

d. A geodatabase and associated maps in accordance with TWDB Flood Planning guidance
documents that identifies additional flood-prone areas not described in (c) based on
location of hydrologic features, historic flooding, and/or local knowledge;

e. A list of available flood-related models that the RFPG considers of most value in
developing its plan;

f. A summary and associated maps of locations within the FPR that the RFPG considers
having the greatest flood risk and flood risk reduction needs;

g. The flood mitigation and floodplain management goals adopted by the RFPG per
§361.36;

h. The documented process used by the RFPG to identify potentially feasible FMPs and
FMSs;

i. A list of potential FMEs and potentially feasible FMPs and FMSs identified by the RFPG,
if any; and

j. A list of FMSs and FMPs that were identified but determined by the RFPG to be
infeasible, including the primary reason for it being infeasible.

2. Approve submittal of the Technical Memorandum to TWDB at a RFPG meeting subject notice
requirements in accordance with 31 TAC §361.21(h). The Technical Memorandum must be
submitted to TWDB in accordance with Section I Article I of the contract.

Task 4C – Performance of Flood Management Evaluations 
In addition to generally meeting all applicable rules and statute requirements governing regional and 
state flood planning under 31 TAC Chapters 361 and 362, this portion of work must, in particular, 
include all work necessary to meet all the requirements of 31 TAC §361.38. 

The RFPG shall utilize this task to perform a portion of the identified Flood Management Evaluations 
identified in Task 4A and, in doing so, identify and evaluate additional Flood Mitigation Projects that 
could be recommended under Task 5A. This list of FMEs that are to be performed under this subtask 
must be approved by the RFPG. 

The objective of this task is to perform identified potential FMEs to, for example, evaluating flood risks 
in areas with currently limited flood risk data, and evaluating potential flood risk reduction solutions, 
including performing hydrologic and hydraulic modeling, feasibility studies and preliminary engineering 
needed to identify, evaluate, and recommend additional potentially feasible FMPs.  Additional FMPs 
that are identified and evaluated under this Task may be recommended under Task 5A.  FMEs that are 
performed under this Task would not also be recommended as FMEs under Task 5B. 

RFPGs must adhere to the requirements for identification, evaluation, and recommendation of FMEs 
and FMPs in Tasks 4A and 5 as well as applicable requirements in the TWDB Flood Planning guidance 
documents. 



Scope of Work 

October 2023 19 of 29 

RFPGs must submit all data deliverables, including required GIS files, maps, and project details 
worksheet, to reflect work performed under this task in accordance with the requirements in Tasks 4A 
and 5 and the TWDB Flood Planning guidance documents.  

Deliverables: 

• Prepare a stand-alone Chapter 4 (including work from Tasks 4A and 4C) to be included in the
2028 Regional Flood Plan.

• A list of the FMEs, as approved by the RFPG, that were performed to identify potential FMPs
and/or FMSs under Task 4C.

• Outcomes of FMEs that were performed to identify potential FMPs and/or FMSs under Task 4C.
• List of FMPs and FMSs that are identified as a result of performing FMEs under Task 4C.
• All data produced as part of the analyses under this task must be organized and summarized in

the Regional Flood Plan in accordance with TWDB Flood Planning guidance documents.
• The TWDB Flood Planning guidance documents will include minimum data submittal

requirements and deliverable format.

Task 5A – Recommendation of Flood Management Evaluations, 
Flood Mitigation Projects, and Flood Management Strategies 
Performing any work associated with any Task 5 subtasks is contingent upon a written notice-to-
proceed.  

In addition to generally meeting all applicable rules and statute requirements governing regional and 
state flood planning under 31 TAC Chapters 361 and 362, this portion of work must, in particular, 
include all work necessary to meet associated requirements of 31 TAC §361.39. 

The objective of this task is to consider and recommend Flood Management Evaluations (FMEs), Flood 
Management Strategies (FMSs) and their associated Flood Mitigation Projects (FMPs) to be included in 
the 2028 Regional Flood Plan that describes the work completed, presents the potential FMEs, 
potentially feasible FMPs and FMSs, recommended and alternative FMPs and FMSs, including all the 
technical evaluations, and presents which entities will benefit from the recommended FMPs and FMSs. 

This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and 
guidance required to:  

1. Recommend FMEs that the RFPG determines are most likely to result in identification of
potentially feasible FMPs and FMSs that would, at a minimum, identify and investigate one
solution to mitigate for flood events associated with a 1% annual chance flood event and that
support specific RFPG flood mitigation and/or floodplain management goals

2. Recommend FMPs and FMSs to reduce the potential impacts of flood based on the evaluations
under §361.38 and RFPG goals and that must, at a minimum, mitigate for flood events
associated with at 1% annual chance (100-yr flood) where feasible. In instances where
mitigating for 100-year events is not feasible, FMS and FMPs to mitigate more frequent events



Scope of Work 

October 2023  20 of 29 

may be recommended based on TWDB Flood Planning guidance documents. Recommendations 
must be based upon the identification, analysis, and comparison of alternatives that the RFPG 
determines will provide measurable reductions in flood impacts in support of the RFPG’s specific 
flood mitigation and/or floodplain management goals.  

3. Provide additional information in conformance with TWDB Flood Planning guidance documents 
which may be used to rank recommended FMEs, FMPs, and FMSs with non-recurring, non-
capital costs in the state flood plan. 

4. RFPGs shall provide the benefit-cost ratio for recommended FMPs in accordance with guidance 
provided by the EA 

5. Recommended FMSs or FMPs may not negatively affect a neighboring area or an entity’s water 
supply. 

6. Recommended FMSs or FMPs that will contribute to water supply may not result in an 
overallocation of a water source based on the water availability allocations in the most recently 
adopted State Water Plan. 

7. Specific types of FMEs, FMSs, or FMPs that should be included and that should not be included 
in Regional Flood Plans must be in accordance with TWDB Flood Planning guidance documents. 

8. FMS and FMP documentation must include a strategy or project description, discussion of 
associated facilities, project map, and technical evaluations addressing all considerations and 
factors required under 31 TAC §361.38(h). 

9. Coordinate and communicate with the sponsors of FME, FMS, and FMP including individual local 
governments, regional authorities, and other political subdivisions. 

10. Production of process documentation used in selecting all recommended FMSs and associated 
FMPs including development of FMS evaluations matrices and other tools required to assist the 
RFPG in comparing and selecting recommended FMPs and FMSs. 

11. Document the evaluation and selection of all recommended FMS and FMPs, including an 
explanation for why certain types of strategies may not have been recommended. 

The information gathered and developed in preparation of this chapter must be subject to the following 
review process prior to submission of any deliverables:  

1. Review of the chapter documents and related information by RFPG members.  
2. Modifications to the chapter document based on RFPG, public, and/or agency comments.  
3. Submittal of chapter document to TWDB for review and approval.  
4. All effort required to obtain final approval of the Regional Flood Plan chapter by TWDB. 

Deliverables:  

• Prepare a stand-alone Chapter 5  (including work from Tasks 5A and 5B) to be included in the 
2028 Regional Flood Plan  

• A list of the recommended FMEs, FMSs, and associated FMPs that were  approved by the RFPG. 
TWDB Flood Planning guidance documents will include minimum data submittal requirements 
and deliverable format.  

• Data must be organized and summarized in the Regional Flood Plan in accordance with TWDB 
Flood Planning guidance documents. 

• A tabulated list and GIS map of all pertinent information. All maps should be submitted with 
underlying GIS data utilized to prepare them. 



Scope of Work 

October 2023  21 of 29 

• Any additional deliverables identified in the TWDB Flood Planning guidance documents. 

Task 5B – Recommend a list of flood management evaluations 
to be performed by TWDB 
Must generally meet all applicable rules and statute requirements governing regional and state flood 
planning under 31 TAC Chapters 361 and 362. 

The objective of this task is for the RFPG to submit a list to TWDB that is a subset of the FMEs that were 
identified by the RFPG under Task 4A, and not performed under Task 4C, along with a request to TWDB 
to perform those FMEs on behalf of the RFPG, subject to TWDB’s available resources.  This Task relies on 
completed work under Tasks 2A through 4A. TWDB will complete performance of these FMSs with the 
intention of generating additional FMPs that will be in consideration for RFPGs for recommendation 
during the current or the following planning cycle. 

This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and 
guidance required to:  

1. Consider the identified FMEs from Task 4A that the RFPG determines are most likely to result in 
identification of potentially feasible FMPs and FMSs that would, at a minimum, identify and 
investigate one solution to mitigate for flood events associated with a 1% annual chance flood 
event and that support specific RFPG flood mitigation and/or floodplain management goals 

2. Once Tasks 2A through 4A are completed, develop and obtain RFPG approval of a list of 
identified FMEs that comprises a subset of all the FMEs the RFPG had identified under Task 4A, 
and not performed under 4C to submit to TWDB to be performed by TWDB on behalf of the 
RFPG. The FME list developed and submitted by the RFPG to TWDB shall be developed in 
accordance with guidance be provided by the EA and, at a minimum, shall take into 
consideration: 

a. The FMEs that the RFPG is already intending to perform, itself, via its Technical 
Consultant, under Task 4C using a portion of the RFPG’s existing grant funding. 

b. The nature of the sponsor/beneficiary of the identified FME study including whether, for 
example, the community is a smaller community without appropriate staff and 
resource, located in a rural area and/or whether that entity might otherwise have 
difficulty in funding and overseeing the FME study itself. 

c. The amount of estimated capacity that TWDB allocates to each planning region for 
performing FMEs on behalf of the region 

d. The potential length of time that might be required for TWDB to perform the FME and 
the liklihood that it will result in potential FMPs being identified in time to incorporate 
into the regional flood plan currently under development or if the results may become 
available during the next flood planning cycle. 

e. The relative order of the FMEs on the list to be submitted to TWDB. 
f. The extent of existing flood risk information available in the area of the recommended 

FME, and 
g. And any other guidance or criteria provided by the EA prior to submission of the RFPG 

FME list to TWDB.  



Scope of Work 

October 2023 22 of 29 

3. Obtain RFPG authorization to submit, in writing, a request to TWDB to perform the FMEs on the
list above, subject to available TWDB resources. This will include TWDB performing
recommended FMEs to, for example, evaluate flood risks in areas with currently limited flood
risk data, and to evaluate flood risk reduction solutions, including feasibility studies and
preliminary engineering needed to identify, evaluate, and recommend additional potentially
feasible FMPs.

4. Work, as necessary, to coordinate with TWDB on refining or modifying the submitted FME list, if
required by TWDB, for example, due to limited resources or other factors determined by the EA.

5. Develop an initial scope of work for each FME to be submitted along with or soon after
submitting the FME list to TWDB and coordinate with TWDB staff in refining the scopes of the
FMEs on the list, as necessary, including sharing information, communicating and being
responsive to the benefiting communities and potential sponsors of the FMEs, TWDB staff, and
any TWDB Contractors.

6. Receive and consider the results of the FME work performed by TWDB on behalf of the RFPG
including information regarding additional, potentially feasible FMPs and incorporate that
information into the regional plan, as appropriate.

7. Consider the FMPs identified through the FMEs performed by TWDB on behalf of the RFPG.
8. Coordinate and communicate with the potential sponsors of FMPs identified through the

performance of the FMEs by TWDB, including individual local governments, regional authorities,
and other political subdivisions with regard to their potential inclusion in the regional flood plan.

9. As appropriate, incorporate in accordance with Task 5A, by recommendation, additional FMPs
resulting from the FME studies performed by TWDB on behalf of the RFPGs.

10. Summarize all work associated with this Task and incorporate into the regional flood plan.
11. This effort will require a highly coordinated chain of events that will involve RFPGs,

communities, TWDB, and TWDB contractors.

The information gathered and developed in preparation of this chapter must be subject to the following 
review process prior to submission of any deliverables:  

1. RFPG approval of the FME list to be submitted to TWDB for TWDB to perform.
2. Facilitate development of, and reviews by impacted/benefitting communities, as appropriate, of

initial FME scopes of work to support TWDB performance of FMEs and any resulting FMPs from
the FMEs performed by TWDB.

3. Review of the chapter documents and related information by RFPG members.
4. Modifications to the chapter document based on RFPG, public, and/or agency comments.
5. Submittal of chapter document to TWDB for review and approval.
6. All effort required to obtain final approval of the Regional Flood Plan chapter by TWDB.

Deliverables: 

• Prepare a stand-alone Chapter 5 (including work from Tasks 5A and 5B) to be included in the
2028 Regional Flood Plan

• A list of FMEs recommended and approved by the RFPGs to be performed by TWDB to identify
FMPs to be included in the current or the following cycle of the regional flood plans.



Scope of Work 

October 2023 23 of 29 

Task 6A – Impacts of Regional Flood Plan 
In addition to generally meeting all applicable rules and statute requirements governing regional and 
state flood planning under 31 TAC Chapters 361 and 362, this portion of work must, in particular, 
include all work necessary to meet all the requirements of 31 TAC §361.40. 

This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and 
guidance required to include:  

1. a region-wide summary of the relative reduction in flood risk that implementation of the RFP
would achieve with regard to life, injuries, property, and other factors suhc as environment and
agriculture.

2. a statement that the FMPs in the plan, when implemented, will not negatively affect
neighboring areas located within or outside of the FPR.

3. a general description of the types of potential positive and negative socioeconomic or
recreational impacts of the recommended FMPs and FMSs within the FPR.

4. a general description of the overall impacts of the recommended FMPs and FMSs in the
Regional Flood Plan on the environment, agriculture, recreational resources, water quality,
erosion, sedimentation, and navigation; and

5. a summary describing how RFPG recommendations in the RFP meet the needs identified during
the needs analysis task as well as adopted goals.

The information gathered and developed in preparation of this chapter must be subject to the following 
review process prior to submission of any deliverables: 

1. Review of the chapter documents and related information by RFPG members.
2. Modifications to the chapter document based on RFPG, public, and/or agency comments.
3. Submittal of chapter document to TWDB for review and approval.
4. All effort required to obtain final approval of the Regional Flood Plan chapter by TWDB.

Deliverables: Prepare a stand-alone Chapter 6 (including work from both Tasks 6A & 6B) to be included 
in the 2028 Regional Flood Plan. Any additional deliverables identified in the TWDB Flood Planning 
guidance documents. 

Task 6B – Contributions to and Impacts on Water Supply 
Development and the State Water Plan 
In addition to generally meeting all applicable rules and statute requirements governing regional and 
state flood planning under 31 TAC Chapters 361 and 362, this portion of work must, in particular, 
include all work necessary to meet all the requirements of 31 TAC §361.41. 

This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and 
guidance required to:  

1. Include a region-wide summary and description of the contribution that the regional flood plan
would have to water supply development including a list of the specific FMPs and FMSs that
would contribute to water supply.



Scope of Work 

October 2023  24 of 29 

2. Include a description of any anticipated impacts, including to water supply or water availability 
or projects in the State Water Plan, that the regional flood plan FMPs and FMSs may have. 

The information gathered and developed in preparation of this chapter must be subject to the following 
review process prior to submission of any deliverables: 

1. Review of the chapter documents and related information by RFPG members.  
2. Modifications to the chapter document based on RFPG, public, and/or agency comments.  
3. Submittal of chapter document to TWDB for review and approval.  
4. All effort required to obtain final approval of the Regional Flood Plan chapter by TWDB.  

Deliverables: Prepare a stand-alone Chapter 6 (including work from both Tasks 6A & 6B) to be included 
in the 2028 Regional Flood Plan. Any additional deliverables identified in the TWDB Flood Planning 
guidance documents. 

Task 7 – Flood Response Information and Activities 
In addition to generally meeting all applicable rules and statute requirements governing regional and 
state flood planning under 31 TAC Chapters 361 and 362, this portion of work must, in particular, 
include all work necessary to meet all the requirements of 31 TAC §361.42. 

This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and 
guidance required to:  

1. Summarize the nature and types of flood response preparations within the FPR including 
providing where more detailed information is available regarding recovery. 

2. Coordinate and communicate, as necessary, with entities in the region to gather information. 
3. RFPGs must not perform analyses or other activities related to planning for disaster response or 

recovery activities.  
4. Plans to be considered in developing this chapter include relevant plans referenced under 31 

TAC §361.22. 

The information gathered and developed in preparation of this chapter must be subject to the following 
review process prior to submission of any deliverables:  

1. Review of the chapter documents and related information by RFPG members.  
2. Modifications to the chapter document based on RFPG, public, and/or agency comments.  
3. Submittal of chapter document to TWDB for review and approval.  
4. All effort required to obtain final approval of the Regional Flood Plan chapter by TWDB.  

Deliverables: Prepare a stand-alone Chapter 7 to be included in the 2028 Regional Flood Plan. Any 
additional deliverables identified in the TWDB Flood Planning guidance documents. 



Scope of Work 

October 2023 25 of 29 

Task 8 – Administrative, Regulatory, and Legislative 
Recommendations 
In addition to generally meeting all applicable rules and statute requirements governing regional and 
state flood planning under 31 TAC Chapters 361 and 362, this portion of work must, in particular, 
include all work necessary to meet all the requirements of 31 TAC §361.43. 

The objective of this task is to prepare a separate chapter to be included in the 2028 Regional Flood Plan 
that presents the RFPG’s administrative, legislative, and regulatory recommendations.  

This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and 
guidance required to develop:  

1. Legislative recommendations that they consider necessary to facilitate floodplain management
and flood mitigation planning and implementation.

2. Other regulatory or administrative recommendations that they consider necessary to facilitate
floodplain management and flood mitigation planning and implementation.

3. Any other recommendations that the RFPG believes are needed and desirable to achieve its
regional flood mitigation and floodplain management goals.

4. Recommendations regarding potential new revenue-raising opportunities including potential
new municipal drainage utilities or regional flood authorities that could fund the development,
operation, and maintenance of floodplain management or flood mitigation activities in the
region.

The information gathered and developed in preparation of this chapter must be subject to the following 
review process prior to submission of any deliverables:  

1. Review of the chapter documents and related information by RFPG members.
2. Modifications to the chapter document based on RFPG, public, and/or agency comments.
3. Submittal of chapter document to TWDB for review and approval.
4. All effort required to obtain final approval of the Regional Flood Plan chapter by TWDB.

Deliverables: Prepare a stand-alone Chapter 8 to be included in the 2028 Regional Flood Plan. Any 
additional deliverables identified in the TWDB Flood Planning guidance documents. 

Task 9 – Flood Infrastructure Financing Analysis 
In addition to generally meeting all applicable rules and statute requirements governing regional and 
state flood planning under 31 TAC Chapters 361 and 362, this portion of work must, in particular, 
include all work necessary to meet all the requirements of 31 TAC §361.44. 

The objective of this task is to report on how sponsors of recommended FMPs propose to finance 
projects. 

This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and 
guidance required to:  

1. Coordinate and communicate with individual local governments, regional authorities, and other
political subdivisions.



Scope of Work 

October 2023  26 of 29 

2. Perform a survey, including the following work:  
a. Contacting FME and FMP sponsors.  
b. Collection and collation of data.  
c. Documentation of the effectiveness of survey methodology, providing percent survey 

completions, and whether an acceptable minimum percent survey completion was 
achieved.  

d. Submission of data. 
3. Coordinate with FME and FMP sponsors as necessary to ensure detailed needs and costs 

associated with their anticipated evaluations and projects are sufficiently represented in the 
Regional Flood Plan for future funding determinations.  

4. Indicate how individual local governments, regional authorities, and other political subdivisions 
in their region propose to finance the region's recommended FMPs, and FMEs included in their 
flood plan. The assessment must also describe what role the RFPG proposes for the state in 
financing recommended FMPs, and FMEs. As projects are implemented, those improvements 
and associated benefits must be incorporated into and reflected in the subsequent Regional 
Flood Plans. 

5. Summarize the survey results.  

The information gathered and developed in preparation of this chapter must be subject to the following 
review process prior to submission of any deliverables:  

1. Review of the chapter documents and related information by RFPG members.  
2. Modifications to the chapter document based on RFPG, public, and/or agency comments.  
3. Submittal of chapter document to TWDB for review and approval.  
4. All effort required to obtain final approval of the Regional Flood Plan chapter by TWDB.  

Deliverables: A completed Chapter 9 must be delivered in the 2028 Regional Flood Plan to include a 
summary of reported financing approaches for all recommended FMPs and FMEs. Data must be 
submitted in accordance with TWDB guidance documents. Any additional deliverables identified in the 
TWDB Flood Planning guidance documents. 

Task 10 – Public Participation and Plan Adoption 
The objective of this task is to address public participation, public meetings, eligible administrative and 
technical support activities, and other requirements and activities eligible for reimbursement. Objectives 
also include activities necessary to complete and submit a draft and final Regional Flood Plan, and obtain 
TWDB approval of the Regional Flood Plan.  

In this task, the RFPG must evaluate and ensure that the draft and final Regional Flood Plan satisfies the 
requirements for regional flood plans in the guidance principles adopted in Title 31 TAC §362.3 and must 
include a statement in the draft and final Regional Flood Plan explaining how the Regional Flood Plan 
satisfies the requirements of each of the guidance principles in accordance with Title 31 TAC §361.20. 



Scope of Work 

October 2023  27 of 29 

This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and 
guidance required to: 

1. In addition to generally meeting all applicable statute requirements governing regional and state 
flood planning this portion of work must, in particular, include all technical and administrative 
support activities necessary to meet all the requirements of 31 TAC Chapters 361 and 362 that 
are not already addressed under the scope of work associated with other contract Tasks but 
that are necessary and or required to complete and deliver an draft Regional Flood Plan and 
final, adopted Regional Flood Plan to TWDB and obtain approval of the adopted Regional Flood 
Plan by TWDB. 

2. Organization, support, facilitation, and documentation of all meetings associated with: 
preplanning meeting; consideration of a substitution of alternative flood management 
strategies; public meeting after adoption of the draft Regional Flood Plan and prior to adoption 
of the final Regional Flood Plan; and consideration of Regional Flood Plan amendments, 
alternative FMS substitutions, or Board-directed revisions.  

Technical Support and Administrative Activities  

1. RFPGs must support and accommodate periodic presentations by the TWDB for the purpose of 
orientation, training, and retraining as determined and provided by the TWDB during regular 
RFPG meetings. 

2. Attendance and participation of technical consultants at RFPG, subgroup, subcommittees, 
special and or other meetings including preparation and follow-up activities.  

3. Developing technical and other presentations and handout materials for regular and special 
meetings to provide technical and explanatory data to the RFPG and its subcommittees, 
including follow-up activities.  

4. Administrative and technical support and participation in RFPG activities, and documentation of 
any RFPG workshops, work groups, subgroup and/or subcommittee activities. 

5. Technical support and administrative activities associated with periodic and special meetings of 
the RFPG including developing agendas and coordinating activities for the RFPG.  

6. Provision of progress reports to TWDB for work performed under this Contract.  
7. Development of draft and final responses for RFPG approval to public questions or comments as 

well as approval of the final responses to comments on Regional Flood Plan documents.  
8. Intraregional and interregional coordination and communication, and or facilitation required 

within the FPR and with other RFPGs to develop a Regional Flood Plan.  
9. Incorporation of all required data and reports into Regional Flood Plan document.  
10. Modifications to the Regional Flood Plan documents based on RFPG, public, and or agency 

comments.  
11. Preparation of a Regional Flood Plan chapter summarizing Task 10 activities including review by 

RFPG and modification of document as necessary.  
12. Development and inclusion of Executive Summaries in both draft Regional Flood Plan and final 

Regional Flood Plan.  
13. Production, distribution, and submittal of all draft and final Regional Flood Plan-related planning 

documents for RFPG, public and agency review, including in hard-copy format when required.  



Scope of Work 

October 2023 28 of 29 

14. Assembling, compiling, and production of the completed draft Regional Flood Plan and Final
Regional Flood Plan document(s) that meet all requirements of statute, 31 TAC Chapters 361
and 362, Contract and associated guidance documents.

15. Submittal of the Regional Flood Plan documents in both hard copy and electronic formats to
TWDB for review and approval; and all effort required to obtain final approval of the Regional
Flood Plan by TWDB.

Other Activities 

1. Review of all Regional Flood Plan-related documents by RFPG members.
2. Development and maintenance of a RFPG website or RFPG-dedicated webpage on the RFPG

administrator’s website for posting planning group meeting notices, agendas, materials, and
plan information.

3. Limited non-labor, direct costs associated with maintenance of the RFPG website.
4. Development of agendas, presentations, and handout materials for the public meetings to

provide to the general public.
5. Documentation of meetings to include recorded minutes and/or audio recordings as required by

the RFPG bylaws and archiving and provision of minutes to public.
6. Preparation and transmission of correspondence, for example, directly related to public

comments on Regional Flood Plan documents.
7. Promoting consensus decisions through conflict resolution efforts including monitoring and

facilitation required to resolve issues between and among RFPG members and stakeholders in
the event that issues arise during the process of developing the Regional Flood Plan, including
mediation between RFPG members, if necessary.

8. RFPG membership solicitation activities.
9. Meeting all posting, meeting, and other public notice requirements in accordance with the open

meetings act, statute, and 31 TAC §361.21 and any other applicable public notice requirements.
10. Solicitation, review, and dissemination of public input, as necessary.
11. Any efforts required, but not otherwise addressed in other SOW tasks that may be required to

complete a Regional Flood Plan in accordance with all statute and rule requirements.

Deliverables: 

• A completed Chapter 10 summarizing public participation activities and appendices with public
comments and RFPG responses to comments.

• Complete draft Regional Flood Plan and final, adopted Regional Flood Plan documents.
• Any additional deliverables identified in the TWDB Flood Planning guidance documents.

Task 11 – Implementation and Comparison to Previous 
Regional Flood Plan   
In addition to generally meeting all applicable rules and statute requirements governing regional and 
state flood planning under 31 TAC Chapters 361 and 362, this portion of work must specifically include 
all work necessary to meet all the requirements of 31 TAC §361.45. 

The objective of this task is to. 



Scope of Work 

October 2023 29 of 29 

This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and 
guidance required to:  

1. Collect information from local sponsors of FMEs, FMSs, and FMPs regarding implementation of
previously recommended FMEs, FMSs, and FMPs and provide to the EA; and

2. Include a general description of how the new RFP differs from the previous plan including with
regard to the status of existing flood infrastructure, flood mitigation achieved, goals, and
changes to the recommended FMEs, FMSs, and FMPs.

The information gathered and developed in preparation of this chapter must be subject to the following 
review process prior to submission of any deliverables:  

1. Review of the chapter documents and related information by RFPG members.
2. Modifications to the chapter document based on RFPG, public, and/or agency comments.
3. Submittal of chapter document to TWDB for review and approval.
4. All effort required to obtain final approval of the Regional Flood Plan chapter by TWDB.

Deliverables: A completed Chapter 11 must be delivered in the 2028 Regional Flood Plan to include 
information regarding differences between the plans. Data must be submitted in accordance with TWDB 
guidance documents. Any additional deliverables identified in the TWDB Flood Planning guidance 
documents. 

RFPGs must submit all data deliverables, related regional flood plan chapters, and related documents, as 
applicable, in the FINAL REGIONAL FLOOD PLAN, including required GIS files, maps, etc., to reflect work 
performed. Data must be organized and summarized in the Regional Flood Plan in accordance with 
TWDB Flood Planning guidance documents. 



1. Canadian-
Upper Red

2. Lower
Red–Sulphur-

Cypress

3. Trinity 4. Sabine 5. Neches 6. San Jacinto 7. Upper Brazos 8. Lower Brazos 9. Upper
Colorado

10. Lower
Colorado-

Lavaca

11. Guadalupe 12. San Antonio 13. Nueces 14. Upper Rio
Grande

15. Lower Rio
Grande

1 Planning Area Description $115,255.00 $103,920.00 $142,890.00 $107,565.00 $119,735.00 $188,500.00 $117,255.00 $126,030.00 $116,200.00 $130,625.00 $107,230.00 $107,315.00 $132,695.00 $129,590.00 $155,195.00
2A Existing Condition Flood Risk Analyses $161,357.00 $145,488.00 $200,046.00 $150,591.00 $167,629.00 $263,900.00 $164,157.00 $176,442.00 $162,680.00 $182,875.00 $150,122.00 $150,241.00 $185,773.00 $181,426.00 $217,273.00

2B Future Condition Flood Risk Analyses $161,357.00 $145,488.00 $200,046.00 $150,591.00 $167,629.00 $263,900.00 $164,157.00 $176,442.00 $162,680.00 $182,875.00 $150,122.00 $150,241.00 $185,773.00 $181,426.00 $217,273.00

3A Evaluation and Recommendations on 
Floodplain Management Practice

$23,051.00 $20,784.00 $28,578.00 $21,513.00 $23,947.00 $37,700.00 $23,451.00 $25,206.00 $23,240.00 $26,125.00 $21,446.00 $21,463.00 $26,539.00 $25,918.00 $31,039.00

3B Flood Mitigation Needs Analysis $46,102.00 $41,568.00 $57,156.00 $43,026.00 $47,894.00 $75,400.00 $46,902.00 $50,412.00 $46,480.00 $52,250.00 $42,892.00 $42,926.00 $53,078.00 $51,836.00 $62,078.00
3C Flood Mitigation and Floodplain 

Management Goals
$23,051.00 $20,784.00 $28,578.00 $21,513.00 $23,947.00 $37,700.00 $23,451.00 $25,206.00 $23,240.00 $26,125.00 $21,446.00 $21,463.00 $26,539.00 $25,918.00 $31,039.00

4A Identification and Evaluation of 
Potential Flood Management 
Evaluations and Potentially Feasible 
Flood Management Strategies and 
Flood Mitigation Projects 

$230,510.00 $207,840.00 $285,780.00 $215,130.00 $239,470.00 $377,000.00 $234,510.00 $252,060.00 $232,400.00 $261,250.00 $214,460.00 $214,630.00 $265,390.00 $259,180.00 $310,390.00

4B Prepare and Submit Technical 
Memorandum

$46,102.00 $41,568.00 $57,156.00 $43,026.00 $47,894.00 $75,400.00 $46,902.00 $50,412.00 $46,480.00 $52,250.00 $42,892.00 $42,926.00 $53,078.00 $51,836.00 $62,078.00

4C Performance of Identified Flood 
Management Evaluations

$576,275.00 $519,600.00 $714,450.00 $537,825.00 $598,675.00 $942,500.00 $586,275.00 $630,150.00 $581,000.00 $653,125.00 $536,150.00 $536,575.00 $663,475.00 $647,950.00 $775,975.00

5A Recommendation of flood 
management evaluations, flood 
mitigation projects and flood 
management strategies

$230,510.00 $207,840.00 $285,780.00 $215,130.00 $239,470.00 $377,000.00 $234,510.00 $252,060.00 $232,400.00 $261,250.00 $214,460.00 $214,630.00 $265,390.00 $259,180.00 $310,390.00

5B Recommend a list of flood 
management evaluations to be 
performed by TWDB

$23,051.00 $20,784.00 $28,578.00 $21,513.00 $23,947.00 $37,700.00 $23,451.00 $25,206.00 $23,240.00 $26,125.00 $21,446.00 $21,463.00 $26,539.00 $25,918.00 $31,039.00

6A Impacts of Regional Flood Plan $69,153.00 $62,352.00 $85,734.00 $64,539.00 $71,841.00 $113,100.00 $70,353.00 $75,618.00 $69,720.00 $78,375.00 $64,338.00 $64,389.00 $79,617.00 $77,754.00 $93,117.00
6B Contributions to and Impacts on Water 

Supply Development and the State 
Water Plan

$23,051.00 $20,784.00 $28,578.00 $21,513.00 $23,947.00 $37,700.00 $23,451.00 $25,206.00 $23,240.00 $26,125.00 $21,446.00 $21,463.00 $26,539.00 $25,918.00 $31,039.00

7 Flood Response Information and 
Activities

$23,051.00 $20,784.00 $28,578.00 $21,513.00 $23,947.00 $37,700.00 $23,451.00 $25,206.00 $23,240.00 $26,125.00 $21,446.00 $21,463.00 $26,539.00 $25,918.00 $31,039.00

8 Administrative, Regulatory, and 
Legislative Recommendations

$23,051.00 $20,784.00 $28,578.00 $21,513.00 $23,947.00 $37,700.00 $23,451.00 $25,206.00 $23,240.00 $26,125.00 $21,446.00 $21,463.00 $26,539.00 $25,918.00 $31,039.00

9 Flood Infrastructure Financing 
Analysis

$46,102.00 $41,568.00 $57,156.00 $43,026.00 $47,894.00 $75,400.00 $46,902.00 $50,412.00 $46,480.00 $52,250.00 $42,892.00 $42,926.00 $53,078.00 $51,836.00 $62,078.00

10 Public Participation and Plan 
Adoption  

$461,020.00 $415,680.00 $571,560.00 $430,260.00 $478,940.00 $754,000.00 $469,020.00 $504,120.00 $464,800.00 $522,500.00 $428,920.00 $429,260.00 $530,780.00 $518,360.00 $620,780.00

11 Implementation and Comparison to 
Previous Regional Flood Plan

$23,051.00 $20,784.00 $28,578.00 $21,513.00 $23,947.00 $37,700.00 $23,451.00 $25,206.00 $23,240.00 $26,125.00 $21,446.00 $21,463.00 $26,539.00 $25,918.00 $31,039.00

$2,305,100.00 $2,078,400.00 $2,857,800.00 $2,151,300.00 $2,394,700.00 $3,770,000.00 $2,345,100.00 $2,520,600.00 $2,324,000.00 $2,612,500.00 $2,144,600.00 $2,146,300.00 $2,653,900.00 $2,591,800.00 $3,103,900.00

Summary of Recommended Funding Allocations for the Second Cycle of Regional Flood Planning (2023 -2028)

TASK
REGION

TOTAL 

TWDB November 2023

mrudel
Highlight

mrudel
Highlight



N
ov De

c

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

Ap
r

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov De

c

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

Ap
r

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov De

c

32 RFPG Adopt and Submit the 2023 RFP to the TWDB All (DUE JAN 10, 2023)

33 RFPG Outreach and Data Collection to Support Tasks 1 – 9 11

34 RFPG
Perform Identified FMEs, Identify, Evaluate, and Recommend Additional 
FMPs

12

35 RFPG Preparation and Adoption of the Amended RFP 13 (DUE JULY 14, 2023)
36 TWDB/Sponsor Last day that work performed is eligible for reimbursement Contract (DEC 29, 2023)

37 TWDB/Sponsor
Last day that the final payment request may be submitted for 
reimbursement

Contract (FEB 29, 2024)

38 TWDB/Sponsor Contract expiration Contract (JUNE 28, 2024)

39 TWDB
Anticipated public comment period on proposed changes to 
administrative rules for Regional and State Flood Planning (31 TAC 361 & 
362)

40 TWDB
Anticipated TWDB Board Meeting to consider authorizing rule changes 
and final publication to Texas Register.

41 RFPG
Public participation, stakeholder input, post notices, hold meetings, 
maintain email lists and website

10

42 TWDB Publish Request for Regional Flood Planning Grant Applications

43 RFPG/Sponsor Submission of Applications for Regional Flood Planning Grants to TWDB

44 TWDB/Sponsor Review and Execution of Regional Flood Planning Grant Contracts Contract

45 RFPG/Sponsor Solicitation for Technical Consultant
46 RFPG Pre-Planning Meetings for Public Input on Development of RFP
47 RFPG Selection of Technical Consultant
48 RFPG/Sponsor Execution of Technical Consultant Subcontract
49 RFPG Development of 2028 RFP
50 RFPG Adopt and Submit the 2028 RFP to the TWDB (DUE JAN 10, 2028) ---->

51 TWDB Preparation, Public Input, and Adoption of the State Flood Plan (BY SEPT 1, 2024)

Acronyms:

Item Entity Activity
Planning 

SOW 
Task #

RFP - Regional Flood Plan
RFPG - Regional Flood Planning Group
FME - Flood Management Evaluation 
FMS - Flood Management Strategy

2028 Regional Flood Plan (2nd Cycle)

FMP - Flood Mitigation Project

Amended 2023 Region Flood Plan

2024 State Flood Plan

2024

**This conceptual schedule contains approximate timeframes for high-level planning activities for the purpose of illustrating the 
anticipated order of and interrelationship/overlap between key activities. Each RFPG & Sponsor will develop their own working schedule 
and will direct its own planning effort which will vary by region. Milestone dates shown red are required deadlines contained in the 
Regional Flood Planning Grant Contracts. 
Detail work associated with each task can be found in the Scope of Work: 
https://www.twdb.texas.gov/flood/planning/planningdocu/2023/index.asp

As of December 2022
Working Conceptual Schedule**
First/Second Cycle of Regional Flood Planning 

20232022



11/2019     Page 1 of 1 

TWDB Vendor Set-up and 
Direct Deposit Form 

Agency Use Only 
 New Set- up   New MC Other 

 Update                           Direct Deposit MIP Only 

Box 1 Legal Name (as shown on your tax return): 

Box 2 DBA: 

Box 3 Tax Information Mailing Address:  Box 4 Payment Address (if different from Tax Address): 

City: State: Zip: City: State: Zip: 
Phone: Fax: Email: 

Box 5 Federal Taxpayer 
Identification 
Number: 
Note: Enter the same number 
used filing your tax return 

☐ Social Security Number (SSN)
☐ Employer Identification Number (EIN)
☐ Individual Taxpayer ID Number (ITIN)
☐ Texas Taxpayer ID Number (TTIN)

Box 6 Federal Tax 
Classification: 
Business Designation: 

☐ T=Texas Corporation ☐ C=Professional Corporation ☐ E=State Employee
☐ S=Sole Owner ☐ I=Individual Recipient ☐ G=Government Entity
☐ O=Out-of-State Corporation ☐ A=Professional Association ☐ R=Foreign Corporation
☐ P=General Partnership ☐ U=State Agency/University ☐ F=Financial Institution
☐ L=Limited Partnership ☐ N=Other (Please Explain):

Box 7 Profit Status: ☐ Profit ☐ Non-Profit
Box 8 Corporation

Information: 
State of Jurisdiction: 
(Required if T,L,C,A checked above)

File or Charter Number 
(Required if T,L,C,A checked above)

Box 9 Sole Ownership Info: Sole Owner Name and SSN: 

Box 10 General Partnership
Information: 

Partner 1 Name and SSN/EIN: 
Partner 2 Name and SSN/EIN: 

Box 11 Backup Withholding:
Please see IRS Website 

☐ Exempt from Backup Withholding

Box 12 

Certification: 

Under penalties of perjury, I certify that: 
1) I have provided my correct taxpayer identification number and that
2) I am not subject to backup withholding as specified on the instruction page for this form and that
3) I am a US citizen or other US person
Signature: 

Print Preparer’s Name: 

Phone Number: Date: 

Box 13 Direct Deposit Information (Response Required) 
☐ I am currently on Direct Deposit and wish to continue.   Sign and date:  If checked, stop here  
☐ I decline Direct Deposit at this time.      Sign and date:         If checked, stop here  
☐ New Set-up ☐ Change in Direct Deposit Information ☐ Cancel My Direct Deposit
Financial Institution Name:   Type:    ☐  Checking   ☐  Savings Mail Code: 
Financial Institution Routing Number: Account Number: 
Will these payments be forwarded to a financial institution outside the United States?  (Required)  ☐  Yes    ☐ No 
If yes, please also fill out the ACH Payment Destination Confirmation (Form 74-227)         
I authorize the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts to deposit my payments from the State of Texas to my financial institution 
electronically. I understand that the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts will reverse any payments to my account in error. 
I further understand that the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts will comply at all times with the National Automated Clearing House 
Association’s rules. For further information on these rules, please contact your financial institution. 
Authorized Signature Required: 
Printed Name Required: Date: 



Contact Us Today!

JOIN US FOR PHASE 2  
REGIONAL FLOOD PLANNING

What’s Involved?

Flood Hazard Analysis to Reduce Existing
Flooding & Avoid Future Flood Risks

Flood Planning Based on Best Available
Science, Data, Models, and Mapping

Vulnerability Analysis of
Communities and Critical Facilities

Flood Exposure Analysis to Identify
Who and What Might Be Harmed

texasfloodregion2.org
903-832-8636

Public Meetings Once a Month


	2024-February 1 RFPG2 Board of Directors Meeting Agenda
	Region 2 RFPG_12-7-23 Meeting Minutes
	RFPG Application Round 2 Final
	Item 10._Region 2 RFPG_9-14-23_Signed_Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Region 2 RFPG_9-14-23 Meeting Minutes
	Adobe Scan Dec 8, 2023

	Items 11., 16. & 17._2023DraftSOW.pdf
	Task 1 – Planning Area Description
	This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and guidance required to prepare a chapter that includes:

	Task 2A – Existing Condition Flood Risk Analyses
	This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and guidance required to:
	Deliverables:

	Task 2B – Future Condition Flood Risk Analyses
	This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and guidance required to:
	Deliverables:

	Task 3A – Evaluation and Recommendations on Floodplain Management Practices
	This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and guidance required to:
	Deliverables:

	Task 3B – Flood Mitigation Needs Analysis
	This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and guidance required to:
	Deliverables:

	Task 3C – Flood Mitigation and Floodplain Management Goals
	This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and guidance required to:
	Deliverables:

	Task 4A – Identification, and Evaluation of Potential Flood Management Evaluations and Potentially Feasible Flood Mitigation Projects and Flood Management Strategies
	This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and guidance required to:
	Deliverables:

	Task 4B – Preparation and Submission Technical Memorandum
	This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and guidance required to:

	Task 4C – Performance of Flood Management Evaluations
	Deliverables:

	Task 5A – Recommendation of Flood Management Evaluations, Flood Mitigation Projects, and Flood Management Strategies
	Performing any work associated with any Task 5 subtasks is contingent upon a written notice-to-proceed.
	This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and guidance required to:
	Deliverables:

	Task 5B – Recommend a list of flood management evaluations to be performed by TWDB
	This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and guidance required to:
	Deliverables:

	Task 6A – Impacts of Regional Flood Plan
	This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and guidance required to include:

	Task 6B – Contributions to and Impacts on Water Supply Development and the State Water Plan
	This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and guidance required to:

	Task 7 – Flood Response Information and Activities
	This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and guidance required to:

	Task 8 – Administrative, Regulatory, and Legislative Recommendations
	This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and guidance required to develop:

	Task 9 – Flood Infrastructure Financing Analysis
	This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and guidance required to:

	Task 10 – Public Participation and Plan Adoption
	This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and guidance required to:
	Technical Support and Administrative Activities
	Other Activities
	Deliverables:

	Task 11 – Implementation and Comparison to Previous Regional Flood Plan
	This Task includes, but is not limited to, performing all work in accordance with TWDB rules and guidance required to:


	Items 12. & 15._2023 Task Budget.pdf
	TaskBudget $ by Region Print

	Item 16. Time Schedule for SOW.pdf
	DRAFT Working Schedule


	2 RFPG Flyer (1)


{"type":"Form","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":true}

	New Setup: 
	New MC: Off
	Update: 
	Direct Deposit: X
	Other: Off
	MIP Only: Off
	Box 1 Legal Name as shown on your tax return: Ark Tex Council of Governments
	DBA: 
	Box 3 Tax Information Mailing AddressRow1: PO Box 5307
	Text1: 
	City: Texarkana
	State: TX
	Zip: 75505
	City_2: 
	State_2: 
	Zip_2: 
	Phone: 903-832-8636
	Fax: 
	Email: pprange@atcog.org
	undefined: 75-1293383
	Social Security Number SSN: Off
	Employer Identification Number EIN: On
	Individual Taxpayer ID Number ITIN: Off
	Texas Taxpayer ID Number TTIN: Off
	EState Employee: Off
	GGovernment Entity: On
	RForeign Corporation: Off
	FFinancial Institution: Off
	TTexas Corporation: Off
	SSole Owner: Off
	OOutofState Corporation: Off
	PGeneral Partnership: Off
	LLimited Partnership: Off
	CProfessional Corporation: Off
	IIndividual Recipient: Off
	AProfessional Association: Off
	UState AgencyUniversity: Off
	NOther Please Explain: Off
	undefined_2: Off
	undefined_3: Off
	State of Jurisdiction Required if TLCA checked above: 
	File or Charter Number Required if TLCA checked above: 
	Sole Owner Name and SSN: 
	Partner 1 Name and SSNEIN: 
	Partner 2 Name and SSNEIN: 
	undefined_4: Off
	Print Preparers Name: Melinda Tickle
	Phone Number: 903-255-3543
	Date: 01.11.2024
	I am currently on Direct Deposit and wish to continue Sign and date: On
	I decline Direct Deposit at this time: Off
	undefined_5: Off
	Change in Direct Deposit Information: Off
	Cancel My Direct Deposit: Off
	Financial Institution Name: 
	undefined_6: Off
	undefined_7: Off
	Mail Code: 
	Financial Institution Routing Number: 
	Account Number: 
	Will these payments be forwarded to a financial institution outside the United States Required: Off
	Printed Name Required: Melinda Tickle
	Date_2: 01.11.2024


